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For six decades, GTR Tyre has led Pakistan's journey, proudly standing as the nation's
most selling tyre brand, creating a legacy of trust. Fueled by an unwavering commitment
to excellence, quality, and reliability, we believe that every journey has a destination. For
us, that destination is a greater Pakistan.

We extend our heartfelt gratitude to our customers, dealers and OE partners. Your trust
and support have been instrumental in our journey. Together, we have not just moved
vehicles but driven the dreams and aspirations of millions.

At GTR, we are a generation of achievers, united by our mission for a stronger, stable
Pakistan. We believe that true freedom is achieved when we make Pakistan great from
the heart. Let's come together and play our roles in making Pakistan stronger and more
stable with all our heart.

Driven by heart, together we are building a future where every journey leads to a
destination of greatness.
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Lieutenant General (R) Habibullah Khan Khattak, also known as Muhammad Habibullah Khan, was a Pakistani
Army officer born in Wana, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa, Pakistan. After his premature retirement from the Army he
closely involved in private industry sector under the umbrella of Bibojee Group. Lt. General (R) M. Habibullah

Khan Khattak was the Founder Chairman of the Bibojee Group of Companies.

Today, the Bibojee Group is an industrial empire with an extensive portfolio of businesses comprising of
Pakistan's largest Automotive tyre manufacturing company, automobile plants, cotton spinning mills, a
woolen mill, a general insurance company, a construction company and two Trusts for supporting education

and wildlife protection.
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A BRIEF HISTORY

Ghandhara Tyre and Rubber
Company Limited (formerly known as The
General Tyre and Rubber Company of Pakistan Limited)
came into existence in 1963, at Landhi Karachi and commenced
its production in July 1964.

The Company was then established by General Tire International Corporation
(GTIC) of USA, with a total capacity of only 120,000 tyres per annum. It is the first &
largest automotive tyre manufacturer in the country producing steel belted tubeless
radial tyres for cars, SUVs and 4x4 vehicles. While bias or cross ply construction tyres for
some light trucks, trucks/buses, tractors, rickshaw, motorcycle including excavator and OTR
tyres.

The Company caters four different markets. (1) Original Equipment Manufacturer, (2) Replacement
or After Market, (3) Government Departments/Institutions, (4) Export Market

GTR sells its tyres in replacement market through more than 180 nationwide authorized dealers
most of whom have been working with GTR for more than three generations setting a milestone on
customer loyalty and satisfaction.

GTR is the largest tyre supplier to all OEMs meeting almost 75% of their requirement. To meet the
quality standards of OE, tyres are tested in Japan & Europe. At present, tyres (mainly agriculture)
are being exported to Afghanistan and Egypt. It has been engaged in manufacturing &
exporting tyres (FAST) for Formula Il racing car to UK, Italy & Sweden from 1988-1998.

GTR is also ISO certified registered tyre company acquired 1SO 9001, ISO 14001 & ISO
45001-2018 Occupational Health & Safety Management System. GTR has been
enlisted among few limited companies in Pakistan who achieved this
certification.

It has Head Office / main warehouse in Karachi while branch
offices / warehouses are located in four major cities of
Pakistan namely Islamabad, Lahore, Multan
and Sukkur.

“VERY JOURNEY
HAS A DESTINATION
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) VISION

To be the leader in tyre technology by building the Company's image through
quality improvement, competitive prices, customer satisfaction and meeting
social obligations.

© MISSION

To endeavor to be the market leader by enhancing market share, consistently
improving efficiency and the quality of our products.

To offer quality products at competitive prices to our customers.

To improve performance in all operating areas, so that profitability increases
thereby ensuring growth for the company and increasing return to the
stakeholders.

To create a conducive working environment leading to enhanced productivity,
job satisfaction and personal development of our employees.

To enhance productivity and continue discharging its obligation to
environment by contributing to social welfare and adopting environmental
friendly practices and processes to serve the society.
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Self-reliance
We aim to reduce dependence on imported tyres to help establish a strong
domestic manufacturing base.

Innovation
We focus innovation in harmony with nature, by utilizing eco-friendly materials
and processes in tyres production to ensure substantial growth.

Sustainability
We prioritizes long-term environmental and social responsibility merged with
ethical practices.

Integrity
We conduct business with honesty and transparency with our customers,
employees and the community.

Teamwork
We encourage a collaborative work environment where long lasting
relationships are formed and employees are valued and motivated.
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CERTIFICATIONS

1ISO 9001
Registered

QUALITY

MANAGEMENT
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MANAGEMENT
SYSTEMS
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1ISO 14001
Registered

ENVIRONMENTAL
MANAGEMENT

UKAS

MANAGEMENT
SYSTEMS

0015

1ISO 45001
Registered
HEALTH

& SAFETY
 MANAGEMENT |

UKAS

MANAGEMENT
SYSTEMS

Palvustan standards

PSQCA

<R

/rvyree

1SO 9001-2015

GTR Tyre has been awarded ISO 9001-2015 for maintaining
its Quality Management System as per the standard set by the
authority.

1SO 14001-2015

GTR Tyre has been awarded ISO 14001-2015 for maintaining
its Environmental Management System as per the standard
set by the authority.

1SO 45001-2018

GTR Tyre has been awarded I1SO 45001-2018 Occupational
Health & Safety Management System. It is noteworthy that
GTR is among the select few companies in Pakistan to have
attained this certification when it was first introduced.

The Pakistan Standards and Quality Control Authority
(PSQCA), as National Standard Body of Pakistan under the
administrative control of Ministry Of Science & Technology,
has awarded the license / certification to The Ghandhara Tyre
and Rubber Company Limited for conformance of the
standards of motorcycle tyre manufacturing i.e. PS : ISO
4249-1.
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s maintained Company's long-term rating to A+ (plus) and
business/financial risk profile of the Company. This rating
1e automobile and allied s
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COMPANY

INFORMATION

Board of Directors*

Lt Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak - Chairman
Mr. Hussain Kuli Khan - Chief Executive
Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Atif Anwar

Mr. Ikram-ul-Majeed Sehgal

Mr. Manzoor Ahmed

Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak

Mrs. Nazia Qureshi

Mr. Naeem A. Sattar

Syed Ahmad Igbal Ashraf

Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Siraj A. Lawai

Company Secretary
Mr. Athar A. Khan

Head of Internal Audit
Mr. Muhammad Zia Akhtar

Board Audit Committeex*

Syed Ahmad Igbal Ashraf

Lt Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Manzoor Ahmed

Mr. Naeem A. Sattar

- Chairman

Board Human Resource &
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Ikram-ul-Majeed Sehgal

Lt Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Manzoor Ahmed

Mrs. Nazia Qureshi

Mr. Atif Anwar

Mr. Hussain Kuli Khan

- Chairman

Auditors
M/s. Shinewing Hameed Chaudhri & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Legal Advisor
M/s. Ahmed and Qazi Associates

Share Registrar
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

*  Sequence of names in alphabetical order
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Major Bankers

Al-Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited
Askari Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited
Faysal Bank Limited

Habib Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
JS Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

National Bank of Pakistan
Samba Bank Limited

The Bank of Punjab

United Bank Limited

Registered Office & Factory

H-23/2, Landhi Industrial Trading Estate,
Landhi, Karachi.

Phone : 021-35080172-81, 021-38020207-13
UAN:021-111 487 487

Fax: 021-35080171

Website: www.gtr.com.pk

Branch Offices

Islamabad

Plot No. 148-149, Khuda Bakhsh Road, Saraan,
Kahuta Industrial Triangle, Kahuta Road, Hummak
Islamabad

Phone: +92 51-5971612-13 / 51-5971650
Fax:+92 51-5971615

Lahore

Plot No. 20, Shahrah-e-Fatima Jinnah, Lahore.
Phone: 042-36308605-6

Fax: 042-36308607

Multan

Plot No. 758-759/21, Khanewal Road, Multan.
Phone: 061-774407

Fax: 061-774408

Sukkur
Plot No. B30/8, Site Area, Sukkur.
Phone No: +92 300 0562502

Stock Exchange Symbol
GTYR
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Lt Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak

Lt Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak was educated at Aitchison
College Lahore and graduated from the Royal Military
Academy Sandhurst in 1964 and holds a Masters Degree
from the Quaid-e-Azam University, Islamabad. He belongs
to a prominent industrial family of KPK.

He retired from the Pakistan Army as its Chief of General
Staff in 1998 and then joined the Family Business which
includes, Tyre manufacturing, Automobiles, Insurance,
Cotton Spinning Mills, Woollen Textiles, Finance,
Construction and Trading Services Companies. He is the
Chairman of Ghandhara Automobiles Limited, Ghandhara
Industries Limited and the Chief Executive of Janana De
Malucho Textile Mills Limited.

Hussain Kuli Khan

Mr. Khan is an accomplished professional with substantial
and diversified managerial and leadership experience in the
manufacturing sector. He has served as President and
Vice- President of Landhi Association of Trade and
Industry (LATI) Karachi. Prior to that, he held Executive
Finance & Executive Director Finance positions from
1997-2006 at JDM Textile Mills Ltd. In 2003, he was
elected as the Chairman of All Pakistan Textile Mills
Association (APTMA) Khyber Pakhtunkhwa and Vice

Chairman APTMA Central Body. Inheriting key leadership
and entrepreneurial skills and attributes from his family,

Mr. Khan is in receipt of Business Administration
qualification from Gettysburg College, USA and attended
several professional programs in Europe. Mr. Khanis also a
Certified Director from Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Governance.
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R

TFYRE

Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak has served PAF for nearly 21 years
during which he achieved different Honours Award Medals then he
retired in 1987 as Wing Commander. He is a graduate from Pakistan
Air Force and also completed various courses from PAF. His 25 years
management experience in the business of Automobile and Textile
Sector.

He has also served as a Director on the Board of various Companies
like Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Limited, Babri Cotton Mills Limited, Janana
De Malucho Textile Mills Limited, Rehman Cotton Mills Limited, Bannu
Wollen Mills Limited, Ghandhara Automobiles Limited, Ghandhara
Industries Limited and Universal Insurance Co. Limited.

Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Khan is an automotive management professional with
vast experience and proven management, sales, advertising,
marketing and new business development skills. He is Deputy
Chief Executive Officer in Ghandhara Industries Limited.

Mr. Khan has got BBA and MBA degrees from the Bahria
University and has also completed a course in business
development from London School of Economics. Mr. Khan is
a Certified Director from The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan.

Atif Anwar

Mr. Atif, Head of Treasury, Capital Markets & Fls at Pakistan Kuwait
Invesment Compmay (Pvt) Ltd. (PKIC), is Master of Business
Administration (Finance) with over 18 vyears of diversified
professional experience in financial institutions that includes Faysal
bank and My Bank. Mr. Atif specializes in treasury and capital market
operations and represents PKIC at various forums. He qualified as a
certified director from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance
(Karachi) in 2019.




Ikram ul Majeed Sehgal

Mr. Sehgal served as Director East West Institute (EWI)
USA (Director of the Year 2016), former Director Bank
Alfalah Ltd (16 years) and former Chairman K-Electric (KE)
and Foundation Member, World Economic Forum (WEF),
Switzerland, Formerly Member WEF Global Agenda Council
(GAC) for Counter-Terrorism and now "Anti-Corruption and
Transparency” and Member WEF Partnering Against
Corruption Initiative (PACI).

Former Member Business Advisory Board (BAB),
International Organization for Migration (IOM), Geneva,
Sehgal is Co-Chairman of the 'Pakistan Committee' of the
Swiss-Asian Chamber of Commerce (SACC), Geneva.
Former Chairman All Pakistan Security Agencies
Association (APSAA). Senior Adviser, Director and Member
Advisory Committee on CPEC Projects of the National
Institute of Strategic Communication (NISC), Peking
University, China. Regular Speaker at Defence Services
Institutions (like National Defence University (NDU), etc)
and International Think Tanks, Sehgal is Vice President and
Member Executive Committee, Council of Pakistan
Newspaper Editors (CPNE). Former Chairman and
Patron-in-Chief Karachi Council on Foreign Relations
(KCFR) and Vice Chairman Board of Management
Quaid-e-Azam House Museum (Institute of Nation
Building) and Honorary Senior Fellow, Singularity Academy,
Zurich, Switzerland. A certified Director from PICG.

Manzoor Ahmed

Mr. Manzoor Ahmed is Chief Operating Officer (COO) of National
Investment Trust Limited (NIT). As COO he has been successfully
managing the operations and investment portfolio worth over Rs.144
billion. He has experience of over 33 years of the Mutual Fund industry
and has been placed at many key positions within NIT that includes
capital market operations, investments, research and liaising with the
regulatory authorities. He is MBA and also holds D.A.I.B.P. At present,
he is a candidate for CFA Level Ill.

Mr. Ahmed has also attended various training courses organized by
locally and internationally reputed institutions like London Business
School (LBS) UK, Institute of Directors, London and Financial Markets
World, New York (USA).

He represents NIT as Nominee Director on the Board of Directors of
many leading national and multinational companies of Pakistan. Mr.
Ahmed is also a Certified Director from Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Governance.
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Nazia Qureshi

Ms. Nazia Qureshi, is a banking professional, holding a
Masters degree in Business Administration. She started
her career in the financial sector about 23 years ago with
Deutsche Bank AG. After working there for over four years,
she moved to Habib Bank Limited to bring diversity to her
experience; where she remained a part of the Corporate
team for almost 19 years. She qualified as a certified
director from Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (Lahore) in March, 2019.

She has a vast experience of working in Corporate and
Investment Banking Group, Transaction Banking and
Operations Department. She has a diverse knowledge of
handling various sectors like Textiles, Paper and Paper
Products, Packaging, Feeds and Edible Oil, Fertilizer, Power
Generation, FMCGs and Pharmaceutical to name a few.
She is well versed in the field of Corporate Banking
Relationship Management, encompassing structuring to
execution of simple to highly complicated syndicated
flnancing transactions. She is also voluntarily working on
the Board of charity organizations aiming to provide
educational support to needy and poor children.

Syed Ahmad Igbal Ashraf

Syed Ahmad Igbal Ashraf is a Fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (FACCA) UK, from where he
not only acquired his education but also started his career. His
work experience spans three continents and has worked in
the UK, USA and UAE for 19 years before he decided to return
to Pakistan.

With over 34 years of domestic and international banking
experience, Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf, was appointed as the
President of National Bank of Pakistan (NBP). Prior to this he
was MD/CEO of PAIR Investment Company Limited.

Naeem A. Sattar

Mr. Naeem, Company Secretary at Pakistan Kuwait Invesment
Compmay (Pvt) Ltd. (PKIC, is FCMA, Fellow Member of the Institute
of Cost and Management Accountant of Pakistan. He has over 22
years of experience in the financial sector.

His work experience includes the fields of Accounting, Taxation,
Budgeting and Corporate Secretarial. He has also worked with M/s.
AF. Ferguson & Co. — Chartered Accountants. He qualified as a
certified director from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance
(Karachi) in 2014.




QUALITY POLICY

We are a company of dedicated people who enjoy working as a team and with our customers in an enterprise
committed to quality. We will continually strive to bring improvement in our products, services and quality
management system to meet or exceed our customer needs and expectations. We will work within the
Framework of legal and regulatory requirements.
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HSE POLICY

Ghandhara Tyre and Rubber Company Limited recognizes Occupational Health, Safety and Environment as

one of its guiding principles and a key component of our Corporate Social Responsibility.

We are committed to protect environment specifically prevention of pollution and ensure a safe and healthy
working environment with consultation and participation of our stake holders by minimizing HSE impacts and
risk levels as a result of business activities. We are committed to comply with all applicable Occupational HSE
legislations and regulations. We ensure required HSE standards and procedures are established and
implemented. We train and motivate all our employees to empower them to play an active role in company's
pledge to its HSE policy.

We set demanding targets and measure progress to ensure continual improvement in HSE performance. We
follow the approach of Reduce-Reuse-Recycle for resource conservation.
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CODE OF CONDUCT

This Code of Conduct establishes policies and procedures that are intended to guide employees, officers, and
directors in the performance of their duties and responsibilities and ensure compliance with the Company's
commitment to ethical and lawful conduct. These policies and procedures shall apply to all employees and officers

and directors of GTR.
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1. OBEYING THE LAW

2. WORK ENVIRONMENT

3. CONSUMERS SATISFACTION

4. COMPETITION:

5. BUSINESS PARTNER

6. RECORDING AND REPORTING INFORMATION
7. PAYMENTS

8. FAIR DEALING

9. SHAREHOLDER

10. STANDARD OF CONDUCT

11. PUBLIC ACTIVITIES

12. CORPORATE OPPORTUNITIES

13. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

14. PROTECTION AND PROPER USE OF COMPANY ASSETS

15. DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST
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EVERY JOURNEY HAS A DESTINATION

SIGNING CEREMONY WITH
PESHAWAR ZALMI FOR PSL 9

GTR - The Official Tyre Partner of Peshawar Zalmi

The number 1 Franchise of the Pakistan Super League (Cricket) in terms of media and brand value. A step toward
strengthening the GTR Brand Purpose, “The Generation of Achievers." Fa
GTR Tyre — Peshawar Zalmi is providing a platform to the upcoming young cricket players by giving them the
opportunity to play with national and international players in PSL and training through international coaches to
improve their playing skills.

By embracing this journey, their dream enables them to showcase their natural talent and performance to become
achievers, as every journey has a destination.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

- M’ " ; e






GRAND DEALERS
AWARD CEREMONY

The Grand Dealers Award Ceremony was held on December 21, 2023, at Nishat Hotel Lahore. Top 160
dealers/distributors and GTR staff members from across the country attended the ceremony. The event aimed to
commend and acknowledge dealers and distributors who wholeheartedly participated in our “Inammat Ki Bahar"
Incentive scheme and made significant contributions to the company's growth.

During the event, GTR honored and rewarded dealers who successfully achieved their targets, presenting them with
prizes and shields at both a national and zonal level for their outstanding achievements. Furthermore, GTR
recognized and presented awards to Star Regional Manager and Star Territory Managers who displayed exceptional
sales performance.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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A8™ DITF EXHIBITION
TANZANIA, 2024

The 48 th DITF exhibition was held in Dar Es Salaam, Tanzania, from, June 28 to July 13, with support from TDAP.
Eight companies from Pakistan showcased their products at the event. A large number of visitors from various
sectors visited our stall, and we held B2B meetings with local parties.

The main objectives of our participation was to explore export opportunities in Tanzania and neighboring countries
such as Kenya, Burundi, Uganda, Rwanda and Democratic Republic of Congo.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024



AUTOMECHANIKA
ISTANBUL, 2024

GTR participated in Automechanika 2024 held in Istanbul from May 23-26 at Tayup Convention Hall.

The main purpose of our participation was to introduce our product and at the same time look into the possibility
of export.

During four days of event, delegates belong to Libya, Morocco, Egypt, Azerbijan, Uzbikistan, Syria, Irag, Lebanon,
Jordan visited our stall and showed their interest in our products.
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TOP DEALERS TOUR
LONDON, 2024
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As in many previous years, it has become a hallmark of GTR to take its top dealers from Pakistan on
international trips. This year, GTR orgnised a Dealers Incentives Tour to London from March 6-11, 2024.

The top 37 dealers were selected based on their contributions to value sales. This was the first time in the
history of the tyre industry that any tyre company arranged a tour to London for its dealers.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Ghandhara Tyre and Rubber Company Limited (GTR) has a longstanding tradition of engaging in social and
philanthropic activities.

The company consistently donates to and participates in funding charitable organizations,including the Wakf-e-Kuli
Khan Trust, which is dedicated to promoting education among underprivileged communities. Additionally, GTR
supports The Citizens Foundation (TCF), a non-profit organization also contributed to the Al-Khidmat Foundation
Pakistan, for the people of Palestine during the financial year 2024.
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GEOGRAPHICAL
PRESENCE

GTR operates Replacement Market (RM) through more than 180
nationwide authorized dealers.
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gHAIRMAN'S

EVIEW

It is my privilege to present the review on the performance of Ghandhara Tyre and Rubber Company Limited
(the Company) for the financial year ended June 30, 2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Net sales in value terms for the year ended June 30, 2024 were Rs. 20.54 billion as compared to Rs. 15.02
billion in the last year, showing significant growth of 37%.

The company is focusing on Replacement market (RM). This strategy is one of the key drivers for the growth.
Moreover, diversified product portfolio in Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) segment including tyres for
tractors, Passenger car, Light truck (radial and bias) and Truck Bus tyres is helping the Company to mitigate
demand fluctuations.

Better agriculture crops amid higher support prices and favorable weather resulted in higher sales of tractor
tyres to Farm OEMs as well as in RM segment as compared to last year. Whereas passenger car OEMs sales
were lower than last year, due to economic conditions, restricted opening of letter of credits (LCs) for CKDs in
first half and increase in car financing rates. This is partly compensated by better sales of passenger car tyre
in RM segment.

Export sales for the year were Rs. 295 million as compared to Rs. 219 million in last year. The Company is
continuously exploring opportunities to expand its export sale in new markets.

The gross profit for the year was Rs. 3,278 million as compared to Rs. 2,292 million in last year. Gross profit
margin improved to 16.0% as compared to 15.3% in last year. Improved gross margin was mainly due to better
sales mix, stability of exchange rate and enhanced focus on RM segment. It was partly offset by higher utility
prices, use of LPG during natural gas load shedding and increase in minimum wage rate.

The finance cost for the year was Rs. 1,680 million as compared to Rs. 1,292 million in the last year. Increase
in financial cost is mainly attributable to increase in discount rate by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and higher
working capital requirements consequent to devaluation of Pak Rupee. This was partially offset by better
working capital management.

The independent rating agency PACRA has maintained Company's long-term rating to A+ and short-term
rating to A1 on August 1, 2024 after evaluating business / financial risk profile of the Company. This rating
reflects reputable business profile of the Company in the automobile and allied sector.

As a result of the factors mentioned above, profit after tax for the year ended June 30, 2024 was Rs. 229.1
million as compared to loss after tax of Rs. 167.4 million reported in same last year.

B
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

SBP has decreased the discount rate by 2.5% in last couple of months. Further there is an expectation for
further decrease in discount rate in coming months, which is expected to bode well for the Company and would
result in lower financial charges. Moreover, this may also result in increase in auto financing resulting in better
OEM offtake. This coupled with the stability of exchange rate and revival of economic activity are key factors
for future profitability of your Company.

We expect that improved agriculture outlook due to better crops would support farm tyre sales in both RM and
OEM segments.

Your Company has started supplying 17 inch rim size tyre to two Japanese OEMs for their Sports Utility Vehicle
(SUV) / Crossover. Some OEMs have also shown interest for 18 inch rim size tyres. We have already started
selling 18 inch tyres in RM segment.

Regulatory and administrative measures by the Government to curb smuggling were encouraging, however,
this has again resurfaced. The measures to curb smuggling need to continue to improve the economic
situation of our country. Under invoicing and smuggling is not only affecting the local industry but also
depriving the Government of its due tax revenue. These measures will provide level playing field to the local
industry and enable them to provide employment.

The Company has entered into a Technical Services Agreement (TSA) with Shandong Huasheng Rubber Co.
Ltd. ("SHRC"), effective from September 01, 2024 for a period of seven (7) years. TSA with SHRC is expected to
enhance the Company's tyre manufacturing processes by leveraging SHRC's advance technical expertise and
proprietary know-how.

Despite the difficult economic times and competitive pressures, we are confident that we would navigate
through these challenges with determination and unwavering support of our stakeholders. We believe that the
long- term growth potential of the business is intact.

The Board would like to thank all our OEM and RM customers for their patronage and loyalty with the
Company's products.

The Board also offers thanks to its financial institutions for providing support, as solicited. The Board also
appreciates the dedicated services rendered by the employees and the management in difficult economic time.

SN
){,t i :-H".-'
LT GEN (R) ALI KULI KHAN KHATTAK

Chairman
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Karachi
Dated: September 4, 2024

|
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The Directors of Ghandhara Tyre and Rubber Company Limited (the Company) are pleased to present the Annual
Report accompanied by Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2024.

2024 2023

OPERATING RESULTS --- Rupees in '000 ---

Profit / (loss) for the year after taxation 229,060 (167,364)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) 12,368 (31,240)
Unappropriated profit brought forward 1,060,795 1,259,399
Unappropriated profit carried forward 1,302,223 1,060,795
Earnings/(loss) per share-basic and diluted Rs. 1.88 (Rs. 1.37)

Subsequent event

Proposed dividend @ 18.7% i.e. Rs. 1.87 per
share (2023: Rs. Nil per share) 228,015 -

(The effect of proposed dividend shall be accounted for in the financial statements for the year ending
June 30, 2025.)

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Directors confirm the compliance with the Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan and Code of Corporate Governance for the following matters:

- The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company, fairly present its state of affairs,
the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

« Company has maintained proper books of account.

« Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgments.

- International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been duly followed in
preparation of the financial statements.

« There has been no material departure, other than that which has been disclosed in the Statement of
Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

« The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
- There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

- Key operating and financial data for the last 6 years have been included in the Annual Report 2024.
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- Information regarding outstanding taxes and levies is given in the notes to the financial statements.
« The Company has made all its debt repayments as per agreed timeline.

- The value of investments made by the staff retirement funds as per their respective audited accounts are

given below:

Value of Investment
Provident Fund Rs. 417.494 Million June 30, 2023
Gratuity Fund Rs. 141.975 Million June 30, 2023

During the year, the Directors, CEQ, CFO, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit, their spouses, and minor
children did not trade in the Company's shares.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company has an Internal Audit function, which reports directly to the Board Audit Committee (BAC). The BAC
regularly reviews the appropriateness of resources and authority of this function. The Head of Internal Audit also
directly reports to the BAC. The BAC approves the audit plan, based on an annual and quarterly assessment of the
operating areas. The Internal Audit function carries out reviews on the financial, operational and compliance
controls, and reports on findings to the BAC.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has the culture and history of undertaking social and philanthropic activities and regularly funding
a school of The Citizen Foundation located in Landhi, Karachi, Waqgf-e-Kuli Khan Trust, a trust engaged in
spreading of education in the under privileged class and other charitable institutions.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER:

During the year the Company contributed Rs. 4,750 million towards national exchequer by way of Custom duties,
Income tax, Sales tax, and other modes.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year, seven (7) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance of each Director are as
follows:
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Name of Director No. of Meeting attended

Lt Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Hussain Kuli Khan (CEO)
Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak
Syed Ahmad Igbal Ashraf

Mr. Ikram-ul-Majeed Sehgal
Mr. Manzoor Ahmad

Mrs. Nazia Qureshi

Mr. Naeem A. Sattar

Mr. Umair Aijaz *

Mr. Atif Anwar »*

- D0V 0Nk W
AWO NN NN O

- ©

Leave of absence(s) was granted to the Directors who could not attend some of the board meetings.
BOARD COMPOSITION AND REMUNERATION

None of the Board members hold directorship of more than seven listed companies.
The total number of directors are ten (10) including one (1) independent female director.

Gender Number

Male 9

Female 1

The composition of the Board as at June 30, 2024 is as follows:

Category Names
Chairman BOD Lt Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak
Non-Executive Directors Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Manzoor Ahmed

Mr. Naeem A. Sattar

Mr. Atif Anwar

Independent Directors Syed Ahmad Igbal Ashraf
Mr. Ikram-ul-Majeed Sehgal
Mrs. Nazia Qureshi

Executive Director Mr. Hussain Kuli Khan - (CEQ)

* Resigned on December 15, 2023
** Appointed on December 15, 2023

42 g
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Board Audit Committee (BAC): Category

Syed Ahmad Igbal Ashraf Chairman

Lt Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak Member

Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak Member

Mr. Manzoor Ahmed Member

Mr. Naeem A. Sattar Member

Mr. Ikram-ul-Majeed Sehgal Chairman
Lt Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak Member
Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak Member
Mr. Manzoor Ahmed Member
Mr. Atif Anwar Member
Mrs. Nazia Qureshi Member
Mr. Hussain Kuli Khan Member

The Company has a formal policy and transparent procedures for the remuneration of its directors in accordance
with the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. The
remuneration, including the director fee for attending the Board Meeting paid to the Directors and Chief Executive
Officer is disclosed (Note 33.3 and 42 to the financial statements).

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Management Committee comprises of five (5) senior members who meet and discuss significant business
plans, issues and progress updates from their respective functions. Significant matters are placed before the Board
of Directors' and its relevant sub-committees in accordance with the applicable Code of Corporate Governance
Regulations, for onward discussion and approval.

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

The Directors of the Company endorse the contents of the Chairman's Review, which covers performance, plans and
decisions for business along with future outlook.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT

We as a Company recognizes Occupational Health, Safety and Environment as one of its guiding principles and a key
component of our corporate social responsibility.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

A statement showing the pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2024 is attached.

|
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AUDITORS

The present auditors, M/s. Shinewing Hameed Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants have retired. The Board of
Directors have recommended to re-appoint M/s. Shinewing Hameed Chaudhri & Co., Chartered Accountants as an
auditors of the Company at an Audit Fee to be mutually agreed and reimbursements of out of pocket expenses at
actuals, for the year ending 30 June, 2025.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As informed through PSX, the Company had renewed the Royalty Technical Services Agreement with Continental
Global Holding Netherlands B.V. ("Continental”) for a period of 7 (seven) years effective from January 1, 2018 (i.e.
ending in December 2024). It was agreed that during which time the Company would also seek alternative
technology service provider in the tyre industry to substitute Continental.

The Company has entered into a Technical Services Agreement (TSA) with Shandong Huasheng Rubber Co. Ltd.
("SHRC"), effective from September 01, 2024 for a period of seven (7) years. SHRC is a leading technology service
provider in the tyre industry, based in People's Republic of China. TSA with SHRC is expected to enhance the
Company's tyre manufacturing processes by leveraging SHRC's advance technical expertise and proprietary
know-how.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

H o s - KL

Hussain Kuli Khan Naeem A. Sattar
Chief Executive Director
Karachi

September 4, 2024

4 gy
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NOTICE OF THE 61ST
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 61st Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Ghandhara Tyre and Rubber
Company Limited will be held on Monday the October 28, 2024 at 11:00 a.m. at ICAP Auditorium Hall, Chartered
Accountants Avenue, Clifton, Karachi to transact the following business:
ORDINARY BUSINESS

1) To confirm the minutes of 60th Annual General Meeting held on October 26, 2023.

2)  To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30,
2024 together with the Directors' and Auditors' reports thereon.

https://gtr.com.pk/annual-accounts-2024/GTR_Annual_Report_2024.pdf

3)  To appoint statutory auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2025, till the conclusion of the
next AGM and fix their remuneration. The retiring auditors, M/s. Shinewing Hameed Chaudhri & Company,
Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.

4)  To approve the final cash dividend of Rs. 1.87/- per share i.e. 18.7%, as recommended by the Board of
Directors for the year ended June 30, 2024.

5)  To transact any other business may be brought forward with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

. F-__._---.'-_-l
Karachi Athar A. Khan
October 07, 2024 (Company Secretary)
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A. CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS:

The register of members and the share transfer books of the Company will remain closed as of October 21, 2024 to
October 28, 2024 (both days inclusive). Transfer received in order at the office of our Shares Registrar M/s. CDC
Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block — B, S.M.C.H.S. Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi by the close
of business (5:00 p.m.) on Friday October 18, 2024 will be treated in time for the purpose of any entitlement and to
attend, participate and vote at the Meeting.

B. PARTICIPATION IN THE AGM THROUGH VIDEO LINK FACILITY:

The Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its Circular No. 6 dated March 03, 2021 has
allowed listed companies to arrange participation of shareholders in Annual General Meeting through Video Link
Facility in addition to physical attendance by the members as well.

Shareholders interested to participate in the meeting through video link are requested to email their Name, Folio
Number, Cell Number and Number of Shares held in their name with subject "Registration for Ghandhara Tyre and
Rubber Company Limited - AGM " along with valid copy of both sides of Computerized National Identify Card (CNIC)
at athar.ali@gentipak.com. The video link and login credentials will be shared with only those members/designated
proxies whose emails, containing all the required particulars, are received at least 48 hours before the time of AGM.
All CDC accountholders shall authenticate their identity by showing original CNIC at the time of attending meeting.
In the case of a corporate entity, a certified copy of the resolution of Board of Directors / valid Power of Attorney,
having the name and specimen signature of the nominee should be produced at the time of meeting.

Only those persons whose names appear in the Register of Members of the Company as at October 18, 2024 are
entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

C. APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES:

A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Meeting shall also be entitled to appoint any other member as
his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him/her. A proxy so appointed shall have such right with respect
to attending, speaking and voting at the meeting as are available to the respective member. The Company must
receive the Instrument of Proxy and the Power of Attorney (POA) under which it is signed or a notarized certified copy
of that POA at the registered office of the Company not later than forty-eight (48) working hours before the Meeting.
A blank Proxy From is attached at the end of the report and also available at Company's website: www.gtr.com.pk for
downloading.

D. WITHHOLDING TAX ON DIVIDEND
Under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 following rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax
on the amount of dividend paid by the companies. These rates are as under:

A Persons appearing in the Active Tax Payers' List (ATL) 15%
B Persons not appearing in the Active Tax Payers' List (ATL) 30%
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Members whose name does not appear in the Active Tax Payers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR (despite
the fact that they are filers) are advised to make sure that their names are entered into ATL to avoid higher tax
deductions against any future payment of dividend.

In case of joint shareholders, each shareholder is to be treated individually as either a filer or non-filer and tax will be
deducted on the basis of shareholding of each shareholder or as may be notified by the shareholders in writing to our
share registrar. In case no such notification is received, then each shareholder shall be assumed to have an equal
number of shares.

E. EXEMPTION FROM DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX/ZAKAT:

Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at a reduced rate, are
requested to submit a valid tax exemption / reduced rate certificate or necessary documentary evidence as the case
may be. Members desiring no deduction of zakat are also requested to submit a valid declaration for non-deduction
of zakat.

F. ELECTRONIC DIVIDEND MANDATE

Under the Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for all listed Companies to pay cash dividend to
its shareholders through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. In
order to receive dividend directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested (if not already provided) to fill in
Bank Mandate Form for Electronic Credit of Cash Dividend available on the Company's website and send it duly
signed along with a copy of CNIC to the Share Registrar, M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House,
99-B, Block — B, S.M.C.H.S, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi in case of physical shares.

In case of shares held in CDC then Electronic Dividend Mandate Form must be directly submitted to shareholder's
brokers / participant / CDC account services.

G. SUBMISSION OF VALID CNIC

Pursuant to the SECP directives the dividend of shareholders whose valid CNICs are not available with the Share
Registrar could be withheld. All shareholders having physical shareholding are therefore advised to submit a
photocopy of their valid CNIC immediately, if already not provided, to the Company's Share Registrar without any
further delay.

H. UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

Shareholders, who by any reason could not claim their dividend, if any, are advised to contact our Share Registrar to
collect/enquire about their unclaimed dividend.

In compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act - 2017, after having completed the stipulated procedure, all
such dividend outstanding for a period of 3 years or more from the date due and payable shall be deposited to the
Federal Government in case of unclaimed dividend.

5, g
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I. CHANGE OF ADDRESS (IF ANY)

Shareholders are requested to immediately notify change in address, if any to the Company's Share Registrar, M/s.
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block 'B' S.M.C.H.S, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi.

J. TRANSFER OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO CDC ACCOUNT:

Pursuant to the section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 listed companies are required to replace its physical shares
with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the Commission, within a period
not exceeding four years from the date of promulgation of the Act.

The Shareholders who hold physical shares are encouraged to open CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or
Investor Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip less form.

K. TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS THROUGH EMAIL

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its Notification S.R.0. 787(1)/2014 dated 8th
September 2014 has permitted companies to circulate Audited Financial Statements along with Notice of Annual
General Meeting to its members through e-mail. Accordingly, members are hereby requested to convey their consent
and e-mail address for receiving Audited Financial Statements and Notice through e-mail. In order to avail this
facility a Standard Request Form is available at the Company's website www.gtr.com.pk to be sent along with copy
of his/her/ its CNIC/Passport to the Company's Share Registrar.

Please note that giving email address for receiving of Annual Financial Statements instead of receiving the same by
post is optional, in case you do not wish to avail this facility please ignore this notice.

L. PLACEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACCOUNTS ON WEBSITE

Pursuant to the notification of the SECP (SRO 1196(1)/2019) dated October 3, 2019, the financial acoounts of the
Company have been placed on the Company's website at www.gtr.com.pk.

M. DETAILS OF BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP

Attention of corporate entities/legal persons is also invited towards SECP Circular No. 16 and 20 of 2018. Respective
shareholders (corporate entities/legal persons) are advised to provide the information pertaining to ultimate
beneficial owners and/or other information as prescribed in the subject SECP Circulars to the Share Registrar of the
Company.

s
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Statement of Profit or Loss --- Rupees in '000 ---
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Net Sales 20,538,570 15,018,659 18,688,299 13,923,520 8,793,341 10,486,282
Cost of Sales 17,260,660 12,726,992 16135560 11,819,632 7,744,581 8,896,798
Gross Profit 3,277,910 2,291,667 2,452,739 2,103,888 1,048,760 1,689,484
Profit from Operations 2,174,887 1,099,204 1,365,138 1,295,353 404,993 836,370
Other Income 145,163 100,328 130,349 181,597 68,106 69,939
Finance Cost 1,680,260 1,291,806 747,818 504,048 848,806 585,032
Profit / (loss) before taxation 495,674 (193,618) 623,830 797,473 (446,664) 253,637
Levies and Taxation (charge) / reversal (266,614) 26,254 (267,765) (224,817) 114,573 (130,7671)
Profit / (loss) after Taxation 229,060 (167,364) 356,065 572,656 (332,091) 122,876
EBITDA 2,700,693 1,615,395 1,853,853 1,773,921 895,722 1,242,183
Statement of Financial Position --- Rupees in '000 ---
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Cash and Bank Balances 224,435 139,675 137,393 74,398 182,749 155,931
Stocks 5,078,079 4,811,895 5,299,420 4,841,207 3,318,231 3,721,748
Trade Debts 3,693,470 2,941,341 2,518,372 1,717,939 1,157,946 1,237,309
Current Assets 11,470,333 10,540,433 10,497,467 8,767,667 6,746,654 7,278,420
Operating Fixed Assets Cost / revalued 12,759,536 12571941 9,570,272 8,845,950 8,623,130 7,811,482
Investments in an Associated Company 33,772 24,902 25918 19,408 13,240 16,091
Non Current Assets 7,377,772 7,734,073 5,556,490 5,255,336 5124611 5,196,632
Total Assets 18,848,105 18,274,506 16,053,957 14,023,003 11,871,265 12,475,052
Trade and other Payables 3,654,800 3,619,653 3,699,739 2,467,179 1,794,516 1,783,757
Current Liabilities 11,760,214 11,260,285 10,445,019 8,873,174 7,398,333 7,468,539
Long term Finances 382,709 555,592 796,083 989,453 1,096,280 1,020,748
Non Current Liabilities 1,092,586 1,260,344 1,764,405 1,634,214 1,518,641 1,665,731
Total Liabilities 12,852,800 12,520,629 12,209,424 10,507,388 8916974 9,134,270
Paid Up Capital 1,219,334 1,219,334 1,219,334 1,219,334 1,219,334 1,016,112
Reserve for Capital Expenditure 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Unappropriated Profit 1,302,223 1,060,795 1,625,199 1,296,281 734,957 1,324,670
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land 2,473,748 2,473,748 - - - -
Total Equity 5,995,305 5,753,877 3,844,533 3,515,615 2,954,291 3,340,782
Statement of Cash Flow --- Rupees in '000 ---
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Cash Flow from Operating Activities 89,144 728,395 603,392 (244,115) 476,638  (409,565)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities (148,749) (223,427) (761,302) (595,756) (289,780) (1,263,612)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities (102,715)  (2,024,796) 606,111 1,392,424 (584,102) (45,631)

Financial Performance-Profitability

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Gross profit margin 15.96% 15.26% 13.20% 15.11% 11.93% 15.16%
EBIT margin 10.59% 7.32% 7.34% 9.30% 4.61% 7.98%
EBITDA margin 13.15% 10.76% 9.97% 12.74% 10.19% 11.85%
Pre tax margin 2.41% (1.29%) 3.36% 5.73% (5.08%) 2.42%
Net profit / (loss) margin 1.12% (1.11%) 1.92% 411% (3.78%) 1.17%
Return on equity-before taxation 8.27% (3.37%) 16.23% 22.68% (15.12%) 7.59%
Return on equity-after taxation 3.80% (2.90%) 9.26% 16.29% (17.24%) 3.68%

Ea
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Operating Performance/Liquidity

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Total Assets Turnover Times 1.09 0.82 1.16 0.99 0.74 0.84
Non Current Assets Turnover Times 2.78 1.94 3.35 2.65 1.72 2.02
Debtors Turnover Times 6.19 5.50 8.78 9.68 7.34 9.26
Debtors Turnover Days 66 71 49 45 48 43
Stock Turnover Times 4.04 312 35 2.88 2.65 2.82
Stock Turnover Days 90 117 104 127 138 130
Creditors Turnover Times 4.75 3.36 5.32 5.55 4.33 4.79
Creditors Turnover Days e 109 69 66 84 76
Cash Operating Cycle Days 79 80 85 106 101 96
Current ratio 0.98 0.94 1.01 0.99 091 0.97
Quick / acid test ratio 0.54 0.51 0.50 0.44 0.46 0.48
Capital Structure Analysis

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Breakup value / share % PKR 49.17 47.19 31.53 28.83 24.23 27.40
Earnings /(loss) per share (pre tax) * PKR 4.07 (1.59) 512 6.54 (3.66) 2.08
Earnings /(loss) per share (after tax) * PKR 1.88 (1.37) 2.92 4.70 (2.72) 1.01
Debt Analysis

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Total Debt to Assets % 68% 69% 76% 75% 75% 73%
Total Debt to Equity % 214% 218% 318% 299% 302% 273%
Distribution

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Cash Dividend % 18.7% 0% 30% 0% 5% 00%
Bonus % 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 20%

* Comparatives have been restated on account of issuance of bonus shares.

o |
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DUPONT ANALYSIS

As at June 30, 2024 (Ammount in '000)
3.80%
Return on
Equity
L
O — O
31.80% 1.22%
Ownership Return on
Ratio Assets

L
- | X
/‘\ ‘% /’\ 0
5,995,305 1.09 1.12%
18,848,1 ’ 4
8,848,105 0 Assets Net Profit

Total Assets wner's

Equity Turnover Margin
+ — S S
L ] i L ] i
() U ) )
5,995,305 1 2'.?;2;?00 18,848,105 20,538,570 229,060
Owner's Equity Total Assets Net Sales Net Profit

Liabilities

- - =
°

1,092,586 11,760,214 7,377,772 11,470,333
Non Current Current Non Current Current 20,309,510 20,538,570

Liabilities Liabilities Assets Assets Total cost Net Sales
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
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QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION F,TQ
For the year ended June 30, 2024 -y
/rvyree
2023
Rupees in '000 %age  Rupees in'000 %age
Value addition
Net sales including sales tax 24,412,254 17,753,591
Other income including share of profit of
an associated company 146,210 99,312

Cost of materials and services (14,582,284) (10,726,580)

9,976,180 100 7,126,323 100
Value distribution
To Employees
Salaries, wages, benefits and staff welfare 3,013,530 30.21 2,294,424 32.20
To Government
Income tax 352,512 3.53 243,831 3.42
Sales tax, excise and other duties 4,145,081 47.55 2,946,935 41.35
To Workers' fund
Workers' profit participation fund 11,453 0.12 - -
Workers' welfare fund 4,352 0.04 - -
To Providers of Capital
Mark up/ interest on borrowed money 1,680,260 16.84 1,291,806 18.13
To Society
Donations 14,126 0.14 500 0.01
Retained in business
Depreciation and Amortisation 525,806 5.27 516,191 7.24
Retained (Loss) / profit 229,060 2.30 (167,364) (2.35)

9,976,180 100 7,126,323 100

Retained in business Eatdkiil)
754,866 @
To Society
1 1 H 14,126
Distribution

To Providers of Capital 1,291,806 ® =
1,680,260 ® o
e
£
| To Workers' fund ]
D 15805 r

2024 2023

To Government 3,190,766 ®
4,497,593 @
To Employees 2,294,424 ©
3,013,530 @

- 1,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000 5,000,000
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DURABILITY

Our expertise lies in crafting tyres that excel across
diverse terrains. Engineered for superior grip and
lasting durability, GTR tyres promise an optimal
balance of handling, extended tread life, and reduced
rolling resistance. We're not just ensuring safety on
wheels; we're making every journey a step closer
to your dreams.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

Name of Company: Ghandhara Tyre and Rubber Company Limited
Year Ending: June 30, 2024

This statement is being presented in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance for Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) for the purpose of establishing a framework of
good governance, whereby an insurer is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the requirement of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are ten (10) as per the following:
a) Male ; Nine(9)
b) Female ; One (1)

2. The Company ensures representation of independent non-executive directors and directors
representing minority on its Board of Directors. The composition of the Board is as follow:

Category Names

Chairman BOD Lt Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak

Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Manzoor Ahmed

Mr. Naeem A. Sattar

Mr. Atif Anwar

Independent Directors Syed Ahmad Igbal Ashraf
Mr. Ikram-ul-Majeed Sehgal
Mrs. Nazia Qureshi

Executive Director Mr. Hussain Kuli Khan - (CEQ)

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies,
including this company;

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedure;

5. The Board had developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the

Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their
date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;
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6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the
Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the
Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect
to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the
Act and Regulations;

9. At present ten (10) directors on the Board. Wherein, the following (8) directors have acquired the Directors'
Training Program (DTP) Certification from SECP approved institutions, and they are fully aware of their duties and
responsibilities namely:

Syed Ahmad Igbal Ashraf

Mr. Ikram-ul-Majeed Sehgal

Mrs. Nazia Qureshi

Mr. Manzoor Ahmed

Mr. Atif Anwar

Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak
Mr. Naeem A. Sattar

Mr. Hussain Kuli Khan

Whereas, two (2) directors are exempted from DTP Certifications due to fulfilling the requirements of having a
minimum of 14 years of education and 15 years of experience on the Board of a listed company.

10. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the
Regulations. However, new Company Secretary, who meets the requisite qualifications and experience as
prescribed by The Companies Regulation, 2024, was appointed on June 3, 2024.

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the
Board;

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:
a) Board Audit Committee (BAC):

Board Audit Committee (BAC):

Syed Ahmad Igbal Ashraf Chairman
Lt Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak Member
Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak Member
Mr. Manzoor Ahmed Member
Mr. Naeem Sattar Member
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b) Board Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (BHR&RC):

Name of Member Category

Mr. Ikram-ul-Majeed Sehgal Chairman
Lt Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak Member
Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak Member
Mr. Manzoor Ahmed Member
Mrs. Nazia Qureshi Member
Mr. Atif Anwar Member
Mr. Hussain Kuli Khan Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance;

14. The frequency of meetings of the sub committees (quarterly / half yearly / yearly) were as following:

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

a. Board Audit Committee: Eight (8) meetings were held during the year ended June 30, 2024.
b. Board Human Resource and Remuneration Committee: Six (6) meetings were held during the year ended
June 30, 2024.

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably qualified and experienced
for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedure of the Company;

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the
Quality Control Review Program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent,
dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal
Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have

confirmed that they have observed IFAC guideline in this regard;

We confirm that all requirement of regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied
with.

Explanation for non-compliance with requirement, other than 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 are below:

sy
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Sr. Regulation

Nomination Committee

The Board may constitute a separate committee,
designated as the nomination committee, of such
number and class of directors, as it may deem
appropriate in its circumstances.

2 Risk Management Committee
The Board may constitute the risk management
committee, of such number and class of directors,
as it may deem appropriate in its circumstances,
to carry out a review of effectiveness of risk
management procedures and present a report to
the Board.

3 Disclosure of significant polices on website
The company may post key elements of its
significant policies, brief synopsis of terms of
reference of the Board's committee on its website
and key elements of the directors' remuneration

policy.

4 Representation of Minority Shareholders
The minority members as a class shall be
facilitated by the Board to contest election of
directors by proxy solicitation.

5 Role of the Board and its members to address
Sustainability Risks and Opportunities

LT.GEN. (RETD) ALI KULI KHAN KHATTAK
Chairman, Board of Directors

Karachi
Dated: September 4, 2024
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Currently, the board has not constituted a

separate  Nomination Committee and the 29(1)
functions are being performed by the human

resource and remuneration committee.

Currently, the board has not constituted a
separately risk management committee and

the audit committee performs the requisite 30(1)
functions and apprises the Board accordingly.

Although these are well circulated among the

relevant employees and directors, the Board

shall consider posting such policies and 35
synopsis on its website in near future.

No nomination was received to contest election
as director representing minority shareholders.

As the amendment introduced on June 12,

2024, the Company is in process of analyzing

and in due course will take an active approach 10A
to built transparent approach to sustainability,

Risk and opportunities as described in these
amendments.

o |
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REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED
COMPAMIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2018

We have réviewed the enclosed Staternent of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of
Comporate Governance) Regulations, 2018 {the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors
of Ghandhara Tyre and Rubber Company Limited (the Company) for the year ended
June 30, 2024, in accordance with the requirements of regulation 28 of the Regulations,

The respansibllity for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Diractors of the
Company, Our respansibility is to review whether the Staternent of Compliance reflects the status
of the Compamy's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and repert if it does not and
1o highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is himiled
primadly to inguines of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by
the Company 1o comply with the Regulations,

As a part of our audd of the financial statements we are required o oblain an undarstanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient fo plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are nof required to consider whether the Board of Direclors” stalement on internal
cortrol covers all risks and condrols or to form an opinion on the effectivensss of such intermal

conirals, the Company's corporate govarnance procedunes and risks

The Regulstions reguires the Company o place before the Audit Committes, and upon
recommendafion of ihe Audit Committes, place before the Board of Directors for thiir review and
approval, its related party transactions. Wa are only required and have ensured comgliance of this
requirement to the exient of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of
Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Commities.

Bacad on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us 1o believe that the
Statemment of Compliance does nol appropriately reflect the Company's complianca, in all matarial
respects, with the requirements cortained in (he Regulations as applicable to the Company for the
year ended June 30, 2024,

-—{le"#ihﬂh'}_ :‘::LJL:} fo .
SHIN HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CQ.
CHARTERED ACGOUNTANTS

KARACHK 2 0 SEP 2024

UDIN: CR2024101051aZmiAMPh

Kazrachl Offic: Principal Offica:
Karachi Chamisar, HE Forume,
Hgsrad Mohani Foad, Hnr:g:m J'ﬁ;—ﬂn:::ﬁmwe.uwgr
WA Moo Do Tab #0221 32412754, 324 42 AT2A5084
v intomational e kha bk com Emai: Iwgihocph.oom 9 Catalyst for success
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
GHANDHARA TYRE AND RUBBER COMPANY LIMITED

REFPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Orpinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Ghandhara Tyre and Rubber Company
Limited {the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position &8 at Juna 30, 2024,
and the siatement of profit or loss and other comprahansive income, the stalament of changes in
equity, the siatement of cash flows for the year then ended, and noles 1o the financial statements,
incleding a summary of significant accounting poficies and other explanatory information, and we
gtate thail we have ocbialimed all the information and esplanations which, o the besl of owr
kncwiedpe and belief, were necassary for the purposes of the auwdit

In cr opinion and to the best of gur information and according o the explanations given bo us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or lees and other comprahensivg incoms, the
statement of changes in eguily and the statemeant of cash flows topethar with the notes forming part
thereod corfonm with the accourtting and reporting standands &s applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 20017 (XX of 2017), in the manner 5o required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2024 and
of the profit and cther comprehensive income, the changes in equity and s cash flows for the year
thin ended

Basis for Opinion

We conducted ouwr audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (1SAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditar's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Staterments seclion of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Intemational Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Prefessional Accountants as adopted by the Instiute of Charterad
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our epinion.
Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial siatements of the current pariod. These matlers were addressed in the
context of cur audit of the financial stalements as a whele, and in forming our cpinian thereon, and
we do nol provide a separate opinion on these mathers.

L
I{l-a:hié;:'lbi: lil‘wnﬂ-ﬂli
Kawachi APk, Hoise,
S——— e Ve 31 32412754, 30424835 ot 432 43 2PZ3N0BA 7
- 41 4 " #
s intnmational ;;mwﬁﬁm Errial; Bwihoopk 60 } Calalyst for success
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Following is the Key Audit Matier:

S.No. Key Audit Matter

1. Contingencies

Refer notes 1813 to 18.1.18 1o the
financial statements which describas
various tax related Wigations pending
bafore taxabon authonties and Couris of
law, the ultimate outcome of which
cannot presenty be  determined,
Management has engaged independant
legal consultants on thase matiers, W
identified this area as a key audE matter
dug fo the magnitude of amount
imvalved, wherent  uncartaintiss  with
respect to the outcome of matters and
significance of these contingencies in

SHINEWING HAMEED CHAUDHRI & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We performed follewing audil progedures in
respaci of this area:

Obtained and discussed documents ralating to
these ltkpations with the relavant dapartmant to
understand the management's view pont and
abtained managemant’s assassmeant regarding
their implications on the Comgany;

Examined legal ewxpense f0 assess any
litigations or claims which miry resull in maleial
misstalement of the financial statemants,
Gircularised and assassed confirmations fram
the Compary's external legal and tax advisors

relation fto Company's financial far their vieas on the pending mattars;

stalamants. involved intarmal fax  expert o assess
managemenis’ conclusion on conbingent lax
mattars, and

We also considersd the adequacy of the
related disclosures and assessed these are in
accordance with the appScable fBnancal
reporting standards and the Companies Act,
017,

information Cther than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
infarmatian includad in the Company's Annual Regort, but does nol nclude the financial staternents
and our auditons' report tharssn.

O opinion on the Brancel stalements does nal cover the cther information and we do not exprass
any fonm of assurance conciugion thareon.

In conmaction with cwr audil of the financial statements, our responsibiity & to read the other
infarmation and, in doing %0, consider whether the other information is matarially inconsistent with
the financial sfatements or owr knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears lo be
materially misstated, If, basad on the work we have parformed, we conclude thal thene is a matenal
misstaternent of this other information, we are required 1o report that fact. We have nothing 1o
report in this regand,

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements
Managerment is responsible for the preparation and fair presamation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
reguirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) aind for such intemal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements thal are free From
material misstalement. wheather due (o frawd or emor.

g
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessng the Company’s
ability 1o continue a3 a golng concam, disciesing, &5 applicable, matters related 1o going concem
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management aithar intends to liquidale the
Company or {0 cease operallons, or has no realistic altemative but to do sa.

Board of direciors are responsibla for oversaeing the Company's finandial reparting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our chjectives are 1o obtain reascnable assyrance about whethar the financial statements 8= a
whole are free from matarial misstalement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and o iEsue an auditor's
report that includes our opinicn. Reasonabie assurance is a high level of assurance, bul iz not a
guarantee that an audit conducied in accordance with 13As as apphcable in Pakistan will alvays
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatlements can arige from fraud or emor and ane
conabdered matedial if, individually o in the aggregate, they could réasonably be expacled to
influence the aconomic decisions of users takan on the basis of these fimancial statements,

As part of an awdit in accerdance with 15As az applicable im Pakistan, we exerclse professicnal
judgment and maintain profassional skepticesm throughout the awdit, VWe alsa:

Identify and assess the risks of malerial misstatement of tha financial statements, whather
due to fraud or emor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate lo provide a basis for our opinion.
Tha risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for cne
resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, imtentional omissions,
misrapraseniations, or the: ovarride of inbemal control

Obfain an understanding of intemal contrel relevant to the audit in order to design audil
procedunes that are appropriate in the circumstances, but nod for the purpose of expréssing
an opineon on the efectivenass af the Company's intermal contngl

Evaluale ihe appropristensss of accounting polcies used and the reasonableness of
accountng estmates and related disclosures made by mansgement,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the awdit evidence obtained, whether & mabenial uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s abilty to
continue as a going concem. Il we concluda that & material uncertainty exsts, we are
required fo draw attention in our auditer's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such dischosures ane inadequate, to modify owr opinion. Our conchesiong
are based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our auditer's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company o cease to confinue as a going
EONCE,

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
inchuding the disclosures, and whether the financial statemnents represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Wa communicale with the board of direclors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the auds and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

o

—
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. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Wa also provide the board of direciors with a statemeant that we hawve complied with relevant ethical
requiramants regarding independence, and o communicate with them all relationships and other
matiers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independance, and where applicable,
relafed safeguards.

From the matiers communicated with the board of direciors, we delermine those matters that wera
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current pericd and are therefore
the key audit matters, We describe these matters in cur avditor's report unless law or regulation
prechades pubbc disclosure abouf the matler of when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matler should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing s would reasonably be expected to cutweigh the public interest benefits of

REPORT OM OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a} proper books of account have been kepl by Ihe Company as required by the Companias
Act, 2017 (MIX of 2017);

b} the slatement of financial possfticn, the statermant of profit or less and obher comprehansive
income, the stalement of changes in eguity and the statement of cash fows togethar with
the notes therean have been drawn up in conformity with the Companias Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017y and ar in agreament with the books of accownt and returns;

€) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for
the purpose of the Company’s business; and

dl  no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakatl and Ushr Ordinance, 1880 (VI of

1EE0).
The engagement partrer on the awdd resulting in this independent audilor's repor is
Raheel Ahmed.
SHINEWIN EED CHAUDHRI & CO.

CHAR D ACCOUNTANTS

KaracHi; ? (] SEP 207%

UDIN: AR2024101058.JL YegDvl

% Catalyst for success
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised capital

125,000,000 (2023: 125,000,000) ordinary shares

of Rs 10 each
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
Revenue reserve
Un-appropriated profit
Capital reserve
Reserve for capital expenditure
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold lands

TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term finances

Staff benefits

Deferred liabilities

Long term deposits from dealers
Deferred tax - net

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturity of long term finances

Current maturity of deferred liabilities

Short term finances

Running finances under mark-up arrangements
Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Accrued mark-up

Provisions

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Contingencies and commitments

Note

7.1

7.3
7.4

10
11
12

10
13
14
15

16
17

18

2024 2023

--- Rupees in '000 ---

1,250,000 1,250,000
1,219,334 1,219,334
1,302,223 1,060,795
1,000,000 1,000,000
2,473,748 2,473,748
3,473,748 3,473,748
5,995,305 5,763,877
382,709 555,692
533,723 486,964
116,803 157,402
13,230 11,630
46,121 48,756
1,092,586 1,260,344
205,563 273,579
37,441 38,549
2,004,431 1,824,675
4,673,327 4,426,247
3,654,800 3,619,653
19,367 19,332
388,060 375,397
777,225 682,953
11,760,214 | | 11,260,285
12,852,800 12,520,629
18,848,105 18,274,506

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

H e - KL

Hussain Kuli Khan
Chief Executive

75—

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

=

Naeem A. Sattar

CAHA

Siraj A. Lawai

Chief Financial Officer



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment in an associated company
Long term loans and advances

Long term deposits

CURRENT ASSETS

Stores and spares

Stocks

Trade debts

Loans and advances
Deposits and prepayments
Other receivables

Taxation - net

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

Note

19
20
21
22
23

24
25
26
27
28
29

30

<R

/rYyRE

2024 2023

--- Rupees in '000 ---

7,318,151 7,682,381
1,621 2,335
33,772 24,902
4,793 4,987
19,435 19,468
7,377,772 7,134,073
814,490 759,907
5,078,079 4,811,895
3,693,470 2,941,341
113,475 144,480
38,045 50,614
257,974 208912
1,250,365 1,483,609
224,435 139,675
11,470,333 10,640,433
18,848,105 18,274,506

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(= IV = o 4

Hussain Kuli Khan
Chief Executive

=

Naeem A. Sattar
Director

CAHA

Siraj A. Lawai
Chief Financial Officer

o
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023

Note --- Rupees in '000 ---
Sales - net 31 20,538,570 15,018,659
Cost of sales 32 (17,260,660) (12,726,992)
Gross profit 3,277,910 2,291,667
Administrative expenses 33 (409,268) (312,089)
Distribution cost 34 (808,987) (626,172)
Other income 35 145,163 100,328
Other expenses 36 (29,931) (354,530)
Profit from operations 2,174,887 1,099,204
Finance cost 37 (1,680,260)  (1,291,806)
494,627 (192,602)
Share of profit / (loss) of an associated company 21 1,047 (1,016)
Profit / (loss) before income taxation,
revenue and final taxes 495,674 (193,618)
Final taxes 38.1 (2,893) (2,190)
Revenue tax 38.2 (73,098) (183,940)
Profit / (loss) before income taxation 419,683 (379,748)
Taxation (charge) / reversal 38.3 (190,623) 212,384
Profit / (loss) for the year 229,060 (167,364)
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Staff retirement gratuity re-measurement - net 9.1.8 9,384 (83,287)
Share of other comprehensive income of an associated company 7,823 -
Impact of deferred tax (4,839) 2,047
12,368 (31,240)
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold lands 7.4 - 2,473,748
Other comprehensive income for the year 12,368 2,442,508
Total comprehensive income for the year 241,428 2275144
-------- Rupees --------
Earnings / (Loss) per share - basic and diluted 39 1.88 (1.37)
The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.
H o K- KL & kr_fﬁ-é
Hussain Kuli Khan Naeem A. Sattar Siraj A. Lawai

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY ‘J Q
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 [rviee

Revenue
Capital Reserve Reserve
Issued, Surplus on
subscribed Re::r\i/glfor revaluation of Unappropriated Total
and paid-up ex eﬁditure leasehold profit
share capital P lands
---------------------------- Rupees in '000 --------=-====-mnomnmmnoene
Balance as at July 1, 2022 1,219,334 1,000,000 - 1,625,199 3,844,533
Transaction with owners,
recognised directly in equity
Final cash dividend for the year
ended June 30, 2022 at the
rate of Rs. 3 per share - - - (365,800) (365,800)
Total comprehensive income for the
year ended June 30, 2023
Loss for the year - - - (167,364) (167,364)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) - - 2,473,748 (31,240) 2,442,508

- - 2,473,748 (198,604) 2,275,144
Balance as at June 30, 2023 1,219,334 1,000,000 2,473,748 1,060,795 5,753,877

Total comprehensive income for the
year ended June 30, 2024

Profit for the year = = = 229,060 229,060
Other comprehensive income - - - 12,368 12,368

- - = 241,428 241,428
Balance as at June 30, 2024 1,219,334 1,000,000 2,473,748 1,302,223 5,995,305

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Hussain Kuli Khan Naeem A. Sattar Siraj A. Lawai
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations
Staff retirement gratuity paid
Compensated absences paid

Long term deposits from dealers - net
Finance cost paid

Taxes paid - net

Long term loans and advances - net
Long term deposits - net

Profit on bank deposits received

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of operating fixed assets
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term finance - repaid

Lease rental paid - net

Short term finances - net

Dividend adjusted / (paid)

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year

Note

40
9.1.5
9.2

8.4

41

2024 2023

--- Rupees in '000 ---

1,891,362 2,141,101
(90,121) (74,827)
(7,348) (6917)
1,600 1,260
(1,667,597)  (1,095,118)
(40,844)  (243:832)
194 5,521
33 42)
1,865 1,249
89,144 728,395
(174,633)] | (233315)
(651) (2,158)
26,535 12,046
(148,749) (223,427
(282,606) | (489,801)
- (2613)
179,856 | | (1,166,452)
35 (365,930)
(102,715)  (2,024,796)
(162,320)  (1,519,828)
(4,286,572)  (2,766,744)
(4,448,892)  (4,286,572)

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(= PP T 4 B

Hussain Kuli Khan
Chief Executive
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Naeem A. Sattar
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Siraj A. Lawai
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS “, Q

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 -y

1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

/rvyREe

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Ghandhara Tyre and Rubber Company Limited (the Company) (formerly The General Tyre and Rubber
Company of Pakistan Limited) was incorporated in Pakistan on March 7, 1963 as a private limited
company, under the Companies Act 1913, repealed and replaced by the Companies Ordinance, 1984 which
in turn got replaced by the Companies Act 2017, and was subsequently converted into a public limited
company. The Company's shares are quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the
Company is situated at H-23/2, Landhi Industrial Trading Estate, Landhi, Karachi with regional offices at
Lahore, Multan and Islamabad. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and trading of tyres and
tubes for automobiles and motorcycles.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise
stated.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the functional currency of the
Company.

Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan

comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) ;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards effective in current year

New and amended standards and interpretations mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning July 1, 2023:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

(a) IAS

(b) IAS

(¢ IAS

1 Disclosure of accounting policies Effective date: January 1, 2023

Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements' includes requiring companies to
disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies, clarifying
that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are themselves
immaterial and as such need not be disclosed and also clarifying that not all accounting policies that
relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are themselves material to a company's
financial statements.

8 Definition of accounting estimates Effective date: January 1, 2023

The International Accounting Standards Board (the Board) has issued these amendments to end
diversity in treatment of accounting estimates and clarified how companies should distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates, with a primary focus on the
definition of and clarifications on accounting estimates. Developing an accounting estimate includes
both selecting a measurement technique (estimation or valuation technique) — e.g. an estimation
technique used to measure a loss allowance for expected credit losses when applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments; and — choosing the inputs to be used when applying the chosen measurement technique
— e.g. the expected cash outflows for determining a provision for warranty obligations when applying
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The effects of changes in such inputs
or measurement techniques are changes in accounting estimates.

12 Deferred tax Effective date: January 1, 2023

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not apply
to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result, companies will
need to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising on
initial recognition of a lease and a decommissioning provision.

The other new standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are
mandatory for the financial year beginning on July 1, 2023 are considered not to be relevant or to have any
significant effect on the Company's financial reporting and operations.

3.2 Standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations that are not yet effective

and

The

have not been early adopted by the Company

following new standards and amendments to approved accounting standards are not effective for the

financial year beginning on July 1, 2023 and have not been early adopted by the Company:

(a) IAS

1 Classification of liabilities as Effective date: January 1, 2024

current or non current

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Under existing IAS 1 requirements, companies classify a liability as current when they do not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the
reporting period. As part of this amendments, the requirement for a right to be unconditional has been
removed and instead, the amendments requires that a right to defer settlement must have substance



(b)

4.1

4.1.1

<R

/rvyREe

and exist at the end of the reporting period. This right may be subject to a company complying with
conditions (covenants) specified in a loan arrangement. At October 31, 2022, after reconsidering
certain aspects of the amendments, the IASB reconfirmed that only covenants with which a company
must comply on or before the reporting date affect the classification of a liability as current or
non-current. Covenants with which the company must comply after the reporting date (i.e. future
covenants) do not affect a liability's classification at that date. However, when non-current liabilities
are subject to future covenants, companies will now need to disclose information to help users
understand the risk that those liabilities could become repayable within 12 months after the reporting
date.

IAS 21 Lack of exchangeability Effective date: January 1, 2024

Amendments to IAS 21 'The effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' address situations where
a currency may lack exchangeability, often due to government-imposed controls. In such cases,
companies must estimate a spot exchange rate reflecting orderly transactions at the measurement
date. The amendments provide flexibility, allowing the use of observable rates without adjustment or
other estimation techniques, provided they meet the estimation objective. The assessment considers
factors like the availability of multiple rates, purpose, nature, and update frequency. The amendments
requires new disclosures, including the nature and financial impact of non-exchangeability, the spot
exchange rate used, the estimation process, and associated risks.

The management anticipates that the adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations
in future periods, will have no material impact on the financial statements other than in presentation /
disclosures. There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved
accounting standards that are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore,
have not been presented here.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented in
these financial statements, unless otherwise stated.

Staff retirement benefits
Defined benefit plans

The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for its senior executive staff / managerial
cadre and an unfunded gratuity scheme for employees not covered by the funded gratuity scheme. The
schemes define the amounts of benefit that an employee will receive on retirement subject to minimum
qualifying period of service under the schemes. The amount of retirement benefits are usually dependent
on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The gratuity plan is fully funded by the
Company.

The funding requirements are based on the gratuity fund's actuarial measurement framework set out in
the funding policies of the plan. The funding is based on a separate actuarial valuation for funding
purposes for which the assumptions may differ from the assumptions used in determining defined benefit
liability. Employees are not required to contribute to the plan.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets (if any). The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually on the basis of actuarial valuation.

The actuarial valuations of both schemes are carried out by an independent expert, using the 'Projected
Unit Credit Method'.

The amounts arising as a result of re-measurements are recognised in the other comprehensive income
in the periods in which they occur. Past service costs, if any, are recognised immediately in the profit or
loss.

4.1.2 Defined contribution plan

The Company also operates a recognised provident fund for its employees. Equal monthly contributions at
the rate of 10% of basic salary are made to the provident fund both by the Company and employees.

4.1.3 Employee compensated absences

The liability in respect of compensated absences of employees is accounted for in period in which these
are earned in terms of basic salary upto the reporting date. The provision is recognised on the basis of an
actuarial valuation.

4.2 Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is the amount computed on taxable income at the current rates of taxation
or alternative corporate tax computed on accounting income or minimum tax on turnover, whichever is
higher, and taxes paid / payable on final tax basis, after taking into account tax credits available, if any. The
charge for the current tax also includes adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise
from the assessments made / finalised during the year.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary
differences arising from differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of the taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit shall be available against which the deductible

temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
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Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortised cost, which is approximately fair value
of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the
Company.

Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets and depreciation thereon

Operating fixed assets other than leasehold land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
identified impairment loss. Leasehold land is stated at revalued amount as stated in note 7.4 of these
financial statements. Cost of certain assets consists of historical cost and the related borrowing cost on
loans utilised for the acquisition of those assets.

Depreciation is charged to income applying the straight line method whereby the cost of an asset less
residual value is charged-off over its estimated useful life depending upon the class of assets. Depreciation
is charged at rates stated in note 19.1.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month following the month in which an asset is available for
use and on deletions upto the date of deletion.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting
date. Items of property, plant and equipment individually costing Rs 10,000 or less are charged to the profit
or loss as and when purchased.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to the profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals
and improvements which increase the assets' remaining useful economic life or the performance beyond
the current estimated levels are capitalised and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of fixed assets are determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of assets and are included in the profit or loss.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the operating fixed
assets may be impaired. If such an indication exists, the carrying amounts of the related assets are
reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying
values exceed the respective recoverable amounts, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts
and the resulting impairment loss is charged to the profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not
differ materially from their fair value. Any surplus on revaluation of fixed assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as "Surplus on revaluation of
fixed assets", except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously charged.

Any decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of fixed assets is charged to profit or loss to the
extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the revaluation surplus on fixed assets relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset. The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's
shareholders.

4.4.2 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any. All expenditure connected
with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital
work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.

4.5 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.
Intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation is charged at the rate stated in note 20.

Amortisation on additions is charged from the month following in which an asset is available for use and
on deletions upto the month immediately preceding the deletion.

Useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if the impact of
amortisation is significant.

4.6 Investment in associates

Associates are entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control. Investment in an
associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise
the Company's share of profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The Company's share of
post acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the profit or loss, and its share of post acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in the other comprehensive income with the
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.

88
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When the Company's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the
Company does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Company calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and
recognises the amount in profit or loss.

Stores and spares

Stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realisable value. The cost of stores and
spares is based on weighted average cost less provision for obsolescence, if any. Items in transit are
valued at cost as accumulated upto the reporting date.

Provision for obsolete items, if any, is based on their condition as at the reporting date depending upon the
management'’s judgement.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost in relation to raw materials and trading
goods in hand is calculated on weighted average basis.

The cost of work-in-process and finished goods comprises of direct materials, labour and appropriate
portion of production overheads.

Raw materials held in custom bonded warehouses and stock-in-transit are valued at cost accumulated
upto the reporting date.

Claimed tyres are valued at their estimated net realisable value.

Net realisable value is determined on the basis of the estimated selling price of the product in ordinary
course of business less estimated cost of completion and estimated cost necessary to be incurred for its
sale.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional, unless they contain significant financing component in which case such are recognised at
fair value. The Company holds the trade debts with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows
and therefore measures the trade debts subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

4.10 Financial assets and financial liabilities
(@) Financial assets
(@) Amortised Cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets, impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses, and gain or loss arising on derecognition
are recognised directly in profit or loss.

(ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(iii) Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income
or assets that are designated at fair value through profit or loss using fair value option, are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Equity instrument financial assets are measured at fair value at and subsequent to initial recognition.
Changes in fair value of these financial assets are normally recognised in the profit or loss. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss when the Company's right to receive payment
is established. Where an election is made to present fair value gains and losses on equity instruments in
other comprehensive income there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the
profit or loss following the derecognition of the investment.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration
given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently remeasured to fair
value or amortised cost as the case may be. Any gain or loss on the recognition and de-recognition of the
financial assets and liabilities is included in the profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

Financial assets are derecognised when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise

the financial asset. Assets or liabilities that are not contractual in nature and that are created as a result of
statutory requirements imposed by the Government are not the financial instruments of the Company.
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value less
transaction costs. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value
and transaction costs are recognised as expense in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective yield method.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange and
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss.

Offsetting

Afinancial asset and financial liability is off-set and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the transaction and also there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment

Financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis, the expected credit losses associated with its financial
assets. The Company applies the simplified approach to recognise lifetime expected credit losses for trade
debts. For other financial assets, the Company follows general approach to determine impairment under
IFRS 9. The Company considers a financial asset in default risk when contractual payments are 90 days

past due.

Significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial
assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

The Company recognises in the profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit
losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date.
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(b)

4.13

4.14

(a)

(b)
(€)

4.15

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether
there is any indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense in the profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost of
disposal and value-in-use. Value-in-use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash
flows using a discount rate that reflects the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

An impairment loss is reversed if there is a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purposes of the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances and running
finance under mark-up arrangements.

Revenue recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when or as performance obligations are satisfied by transferring control of a
promised goods or service to a customer, and control either transfers over time or at a point in time.
Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates
and government levies. The payment terms for customers varies for different class of customers and
normally ranges from advance payments to credit period mutually agreed.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive such payment is established.

Interest income is accrued on the time proportion basis with reference to the principal outstanding and
applicable rate of return.

Government grant
Government grants are recognised where there is a reasonable expectation that the grant will be received

and the attached conditions will be complied with. It is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the related cost, for which it is intended to compensate is recorded.
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Foreign currency transactions and translation

Foreign currency transactions are recorded using the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan Rupee using
the exchange rate ruling at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of foreign currency transactions and on translation of monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies at reporting date are recognised in the profit or loss.
Warranty tyre replacement allowance

Warranty expense is recognised in the year of sale on the basis of estimates of warranty claims to be

received against those sales.
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.

However, provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when:

- thereis a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company; or

- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the

obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
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5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

SUMMARY OF OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Borrowing costs

Borrowing and other related costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the
Chief Operating Decision Maker. The Chief Executive has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision
Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.
On the basis of its internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable
segment.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in these financial statements in the period in which
these are approved.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting and reporting
standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise judgements in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. Judgements made by
management in application of the approved accounting and reporting standards that have significant
effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in the next
year are discussed in respective policy notes. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are
significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgements were exercised in application of
accounting policies are as follows:
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Estimate of payables and receivables in respect of staff retirement benefit schemes [notes 4.1 and 9.1];

Estimates of current and deferred tax [note 4.2]

Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets [notes 4.4 and 4.5]

Provision for slow moving inventories [notes 4.7 and 4.8];

Estimation of expected credit losses for trade receivables [note 4.12]

Provision for tyre replacement allowance [note 4.17]

Provisions and contingent liabilities [Note 4.18]

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

2024 2023
--- Number of shares ---

7,133,320 7,133,320

186,680 186,680

114,613,350 114,613,350

121,933,350 121,933,350

Ordinary shares held by

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each fully paid in cash

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued for consideration

other than cash

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued as fully paid bonus

shares

the associated companies as at June 30,

Bibojee Services (Private) Limited

Pakistan Kuwait Investment Company (Private) Limited

2024 2023
--- Rupees in '000 ---

71,333 71,333

1,867 1,867

1,146,134 1,146,134

1,219,334 1,219,334

2024 2023

--- Number of shares ---

33,881,772 33,881,772
36,579,835 36,579,835

70,461,607 70,461,607
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7.2

7.3

7.4

8.1

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no rights to fixed income. The holders of
shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at the meeting of the Company. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Capital reserve
The reserve has been established out of the unappropriated profit for capital expenditure.
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold lands

The Company during the preceding year had changed the accounting policy related to valuation of
leasehold lands from cost to revaluation model and consequently revalued its leasehold lands located at
H-23/2, Landhi Industrial and Trading Estate, Karachi and B-30, Sindh Industrial Trading Estate (SITE),
Sukkur. The revaluations were conducted by M/s. Joseph Lobo (Private) Limited (independent valuers and
consultants) as at June 26, 2023. These revaluations resulted in a net surplus of Rs.2,473.75 million.
Forced sale value of these lands at the time of revaluations were Rs. 1,884.9 million. Leasehold lands were
revalued on the basis of current market values. The most significant input into the valuation approach was
price per acre for land.

2024 2023

LONG TERM FINANCES - Secured Note --- Rupees in '000 ---

From banking companies
- Conventional

Term finance facility 8.1 72,380 217,140
Temporary economic refinance facility 8.2 350,939 395,384

- Shariah compliant
Islamic temporary economic refinance facility 8.3 319,197 412,598
8.4 742,516 1,025,122

Less grouped under:
Current liabilities (205,563) (273,579)
Deferred income - Government grant 10 (154,244) (195,951)
382,709 555,592

In order to finance the Company's on-going budgeted capital expenditure requirement, the Company
obtained a term finance facility of Rs. 850 million from MCB Bank Limited. The loan is repayable in fourteen
equal quarterly instalments after a grace period of one and a half year from the date of disbursement (i.e.
May 3, 2019). This finance facility carries mark-up at the rate of three months KIBOR plus 0.50% per annum
and is secured by way of first registered joint pari passu hypothecation charge of Rs. 1,133.33 million over
all the present and future fixed assets (excluding land and building) and current assets of the Company.
The Company during the year has repaid Rs 144.76 million.
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The Company obtained a long term financing facility from Bank Alfalah Limited under State Bank of
Pakistan's (SBP) Refinance Scheme for Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (‘'TERF'), recognised
initially at fair value. The total facility available amountsto Rs. 400 million. The loan is repayable in ten
years including one years grace period for principal repayments (principal repayments on semi-annual
basis whereas markup servicing on quarterly basis). The said facility is secured by way of first pari passu
charge over all the present and future fixed assets (excluding land and building) and current assets of the
Company to the extent of Rs. 533.33 million. The Company during the year has repaid Rs 44.44 million.

This represents long term financing facility obtained from Faysal Bank Limited under State Bank of
Pakistan's (SBP) Refinance Scheme for Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility (ITERF'),
recognised initially at fair value. The total facility available amountsto Rs. 444 million. The balance is
repayable in 20 equal quarterly instalments after a grace period of two years from the date of each
disbursement. The said facility is secured by way of first pari passu charge over all the present and future
fixed assets (excluding land and building) and current assets of the Company to the extent of Rs. 592
million. The Company during the year has repaid Rs 93.4 million.

Following are the changes in the long term finances:

2024 2023

Note --- Rupees in '000 ---

Balance at beginning of the year 1,025,122 1,514,923
Repayments (282,606) (489,801)
Balance at the end of the year 742,516 1,025,122
STAFF BENEFITS
Staff retirement gratuity 9.1 444,564 411,145
Employees compensated absences 9.2 89,159 75,819

533,723 486,964

Staff retirement gratuity

As stated in note 4.1.1, the Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for its senior executive
staff and an unfunded gratuity scheme for employees not covered by the funded gratuity scheme.

Plan assets held in trust are governed by local regulations which mainly include the Sindh Trust Act, 2020,
the Companies Act, 2017, Income Tax Rules, 2002 and Rules under the Trust Deed of the Plan. The Board
of Trustees are responsible for the governance of the plan assets, including investment decisions and
contributions schedules. The Company appoints the trustees and all trustees are employees of the
Company.

The latest actuarial valuations of the schemes as at June 30, 2024 was carried out by an external actuary,

using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method'. Details of the schemes as per the actuarial valuations are as
follows:
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Funded Unfunded Total

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

9.1.4 Balance sheet reconciliation
Present value of defined
benefit obligation - note 9.1.5 262,310 227,545 514,079 452,450 776,389 679,995
Fair value of plan assets

-note 9.1.6 (232,186)  (160,805) g

(232,186)  (160,805)
Liability at end of the year 30,124 66740 514079 452450 544,203 519,190

Payable within next twelve months
(note 15) (31,196) (43,473) (68,443)  (64572)  (99,639) (108,045)
(1,072) 23,267 445,636 387,878 444,564 411,145

9.1.5 Movement in the present value

of defined benefit obligation

Balance at the beginning of the year 227,545 183,025 452,450 417,219 679,995 600,244

Current service cost 16,424 156,575 31,047 28,863 47,471 44,438
Interest cost 34,037 19,907 70,143 49,539 104,180 69,446
Benefits paid (36,171)  (43474)  (41,621)  (28295)  (77,792)  (71,769)
Re-measurement on obligation 9,457 31,432 13,078 6,204 22,535 37,636
Transferred to managerial cadre 11,018 21,080 (11,018) (21,080) - -
Balance at the end of the year 262,310 227,545 514,079 452,450 776,389 679,995

9.1.6 Movement in the fair value

of plan assets

Balance at beginning of the year 160,805 136,491 - - 160,805 136,491
Interest income 27,133 16,907 - - 27,133 16,907
Contributions 48,500 46,532 - - 48,500 46,532
Benefits paid (36,171) (43,474) - - (36,171)  (43474)
Re-measurement 31,919 4,349 - - 31,919 4,349

Balance at the end of the year 232,186 160,805 - - 232,186 160,805
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9.1.7 Charge for the year
Current service cost

Net interest cost

9.1.8 Re-measurement recognised in
other comprehensive income
Re-measurement loss on obligation
Re-measurement gain on fair value

of plan assets

9.1.9 Net recognised liability

Net liability at beginning of the year

Charge for the year

Benefits paid during the year

Contributions made during the year

Transferred to managerial cadre

Re-measurement recognised in
other comprehensive income

Net liability at the end of the year

Payable within next twelve

months

9.1.10 Plan assets comprise of:
Equity instruments - Quoted
T-bills / term deposit receipts

Cash at bank

Funded

Unfunded

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

<R

/rvyREe

Total

16,424 15,575 31,047 28863 47,471 44,438
6,904 3,000 70,143 49539 77,047 52,539
23,328 18575 101,190 78402 124,518 96,977
9,457 31,432 13,078 6204 22,535 37,636
(31,919) (4,349) - - (31,919)  (4349)
(22,462) 27,083 13,078 6,204 (9,384) 33287
66,740 46534 452,450 417,219 519,190 463753
23,328 18575 101,190 78402 124,518 96,977
- - (41,621) (28295)  (41,621)  (28,295)
(48,500)  (46,532) - - (48500)  (46,532)
11,018 21080  (11,018)  (21,080) - -
(22,462) 27,083 13,078 6,204 (9,384) 33287
30,124 66740 514079 452450 544203 519,190
(31,196)  (43473)  (68,443)  (64572)  (99,639) (108,045)
(1,072) 23267 445636 387,878 444564 411145
70,120 36,908 - - 70,120 36,908
154,140 110,300 - - 154740 110,300
7,926 13,597 - - 7,926 13,597
232,186 160,805 - - 232186 160,805
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9.1.11

9.1.12

9.1.13

9.1.14

Funded Unfunded

Actuarial assumptions used

Discount rate 14.75 16.25 14.75 16.25
Expected rate of increase in

future salaries 14.75 16.25 14.75 16.25
Demographic assumptions
- Mortality rates SLIC SLIC SLIC SLIC

(2001-05) (2001-05) (2001-05) (2001-05)

-Rates of employee turnover Moderate Moderate Moderate Moderate

Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in principal assumptions is as follows:

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumptions assumptions assumptions

------ Rupees in '000 ------

Discount rate 1.00% (44,247) 49,641
Future salaries 1.00% 52,776 (47,810)
Withdrawal rates 10.00% (1,459) 1,502

The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and change in some of the assumptions may be correlated.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the
same method (present value of defined benefit obligation calculated with the project unit credit method at
the end of reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the gratuity liability recognised within the
statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change
compared to the previous period.

Based on actuary's advice, the expected charge for the year ending June 30, 2025 amounts to Rs 19.704
million and Rs 106.758 million for funded and unfunded gratuity schemes respectively.

The weighted average duration of funded gratuity and un-funded gratuity is 5.41 and 6.37 years
respectively.
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Description of the risks to the Company:
The defined benefit schemes expose the Company to the following risks:

Mortality risks - The risk that the actual mortality experience is different. The effect depends on the
beneficiaries’ service / age distribution and the benefit.

Final salary risks - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is different than what
was assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount changes similarly.

Withdrawal risks - The risk of higher or lower withdrawal experience than assumed. The final effect could
go any way depending on the beneficiaries service/age distribution and the benefit.

Asset volatility - The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate
bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. The Fund believes that due to
the long-term nature of the plan liabilities and the strength of the Company's support, the current
investment strategy manages this risk adequately.

2024 2023

Employees compensated absences Note --- Rupees in '000 ---
Balance at beginning of the year 84,507 69,874
Charge for the year 20,001 21,550
Encashed during the year (7,348) (6,917)
Balance at the end of the year 97,160 84,507
Payable within next twelve months (8,001) (8,688)
89,159 75,819

DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Deferred income - Government grant 10.1 154,244 195,951
Current maturities of deferred liabilities (37,441) (38,549)
116,803 157,402

This represents deferred government grant recognised in respect of the benefit of below-market interest
rate on long term finances as referred to in note 8. The benefit has been measured as the difference
between the fair value of the loan and the proceeds received. The Company has used the prevailing market
rate of mark-up for similar instruments to calculate fair values of respective loans.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS FROM DEALERS

These deposits are interest free and are not refundable during the subsistence of dealership and are
utilised for the purpose of business as per the written agreements.
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12.

12.1

13.

13.1

14.

2024 2023

DEFERRED TAXATION --- Rupees in '000 ---

Taxable temporary difference

- accelerated tax depreciation allowance 828,121 749,539
Deductible temporary difference
- provision for expected credit loss (24,216) (17,522)
- provision for doubtful custom duty rebates recoverable (33,434) (29,820)
- provision for staff benefits (190,209) (177,196)
- interest payable on custom duties (11,075) (9,878)
- provision for tyre replacement allowance (47,038) (38,193)
- minimum taxes (259,287) (225,807)
- un-absorbed tax depreciation (214,678) (195,183)
- others (2,063) (7,184)
(782,000)  (700,783)
46,121 48,756

The Company has recognised deferred tax asset on minimum turnover tax amounting to Rs.259,287
million (2023: Rs: 225.807 million) as the Company, based on its financial projections, expects to recoup it
in the ensuing years. The Company carries out periodic assessments to determine if the Company would
be able to set off the minimum tax against the future tax liabilities of the Company.

2024 2023

SHORT TERM FINANCES - Secured --- Rupees in '000 ---
Conventional 335,627 225,000
Shariah Compliant 1,668,804 1,699,575

2,004,431 1,824,575

Short term finance facilities available from commercial and islamic banks aggregate Rs. 2,100 million
(2023: Rs 1,825 million) and are secured against pari passu charge over fixed assets (excluding land and
building), stocks and trade debts of the Company. The rates of mark-up of these facilities range from
KIBOR plus 0.65% to KIBOR plus 1% per annum. These facilities are expiring on various dates upto
January 31, 2025.

2024 2023
RUNNING FINANCES UNDER MARK-UP 2028 . 2o
Note --- Rupees in '000 ---
ARRANGEMENTS - Secured
Conventional 4,673,327 4,244,767
Shariah Compliant - 181,486

14.1 4,673,327 4,426,247
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The Company has arranged running finance facilities from commercial and islamic banks on mark-up
basis to the extent of Rs 5,451 million (2023: Rs 5575 million). The rates of mark-up on these
arrangements range from KIBOR plus 0.50% to KIBOR plus 1.0% per annum. These finance facilities are
secured against pari passu charge over fixed assets (excluding land and building), stocks and trade debts

of the Company and are expiring on various dates by January 31, 2025,

The facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantees as at June 30, 2024 aggregated Rs. 5,972 million
(2023: Rs 5,200 million) of which the amount remaining unutilised at the year-end was Rs. 3,265.814

million (2023: Rs 2,492.4 million).

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors

Bills payable

Accrued expenses

Royalty fee payable

Advances from customers

Staff provident fund payable

Staff retirement gratuity

Short term deposits

Workers' profits participation fund payable
Workers' welfare fund payable
Payable to Wagf-e-Kuli Khan
Interest payable on custom duties
Sales tax payable

Others

Note

15.1

9.1.4

15.2

15.3&15.4

15.5

2024 2023

--- Rupees in '000 ---

788,929 541,245
1,292,909 1,999,819
885,849 520,321
256,001 187,569
85,948 59,610
7,064 5264
99,639 108,045
2,946 1,106
11,453 -
4,352 -
5,726 -
29,933 29,933
121,967 115,164
62,084 51,687
3,654,800 3,619,653

Represent advances from customers received against sale of tyres and tubes in the ordinary course of
business. The advances outstanding as at June 30, 2023 amounting to Rs. 57.674 million have been fully

recognized as revenue during the current year.

Workers' profits participation fund

Balance at the beginning of the year

Interest on funds utilised in the
Company's business

Allocation for the year

Payments made during the year
Balance as at the end of the year

Note

37
36

2024 2023

--- Rupees in '000 ---

- 6,637
- 258
11,453 -
11,453 258
- (6,895)
11,453 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

15.3 The Company had deferred the recognition of import levies relating to the plant and machinery imported
under a finance lease arrangement with Islamic Development Bank (IDB), Jeddah as these were not
payable by the Company until the ownership of the subject plant and machinery was transferred in the
Company's name. The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) had imposed a condition that interest at the
prevailing bank rate shall be payable on the import levies deferred till the date such levies are paid.

During the year ended June 30, 2007 the Appraisement Collectorate, Custom House, Karachi (ACCH)
issued a final notice to the Company to deposit all outstanding dues amounting to Rs. 208.323 million
being interest on custom duties including surcharge and delayed surcharge calculated upto March 31,
2001. In reply the Company had filed an application with the High Court of Sindh to vacate the said charge
of interest.

The High Court of Sindh, during year ended June 30, 2005, dismissed the petition filed by the Company.
ACCH issued another final notice to the Company to deposit all outstanding dues amounting to Rs.
294.907 million being interest on custom duties including surcharge and delayed surcharge calculated
upto May 15, 2005. The Company filed an appeal with the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the decision
of the High Court of Sindh.

During the year ended June 30, 2006, the Company filed an application for alternate dispute resolution with
the Alternate Dispute Resolution Committee on the direction of the Supreme Court of Pakistan.

The ADRC, during year ended June 30, 2007, recommended that the Company shall be liable to interest on
late payment of principal amounting to Rs. 111.547 million and surcharge on late payment of principal
amounting to Rs. 2.983 million, however, the Company shall not be liable to surcharge on late payment of
interest. The FBR accepted the recommendations of the ADRC, except for the waiver of surcharge on the
late payment of interest, and instructed the Company to pay Rs. 114.530 million on account of interest on
custom duties including surcharge thereon. The Company's pending refund claims upto that time
amounting to Rs. 20.195 million had also been processed and adjusted by the ACCH. During that year, the
Company also made a partial payment amounting to Rs. 40 million in respect of the FBR's demand based
on ADRC recommendations. During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Company made a further partial
payment amounting to Rs. 20 million in respect of the FBR's demand.

The FBR, during the year ended June 30, 2011, adjusted an amount of Rs. 4.402 million against
outstanding interest and customs duties which resulted in the reduction of liability towards the FBR to Rs.
29.933 million.

15.4 During the year ended June 30, 2001 an amount of Rs. 5 million was paid by the Company under protest
on account of interest on import levies. Further, refunds of custom duty rebates amounting to Rs. 4.93
million and Rs 4.07 million were adjusted by the customs authorities during the year ended June 30, 2000
and 2007 respectively against their demand of interest on import levies referred to in note 15.3. The
management is of the view that the above adjustments aggregating Rs. 13.99 million will be made against
the amount of interest payable on custom duties, as more fully explained in note 15.3. However, pending a
formal adjustment order, the amount of Rs 13.99 million is shown receivable as 'current account balances
with statutory authorities (note 28).
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Others include vehicle deposits under the Company's vehicle policy aggregating Rs. 13.592 million
(2023: Rs. 17.609 million) and withheld income tax payable of Rs. 36.027 million (2023: Rs. 20.524
million).

2024 AR

ACCRUED MARK-UP Note --- Rupees in '000 ---

Mark-up accrued on:

Long term finances 8,625 14,334
Short term finances 98,277 86,337
Running finances 281,158 274,726
388,060 375,397

PROVISIONS
Provision for tyre replacement allowance 17.1 127,130 115,736
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) 17.2 208,778 208,778
Sindh government infrastructure fee 17.3 441,317 358,439
777,225 682,953

Provision for tyre replacement allowance

Balance at beginning of the year 115,736 82,857
Charge for the year 17.1.1 & 32.1 94,365 118,109

210,101 200,966
Claims paid / adjusted during the year (82,971) (85,230)
Balance at the end of the year 127,130 115,736

This represents provision on account of tyre replacement claims expected to be received by the
Company in the coming years.

The Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) through its judgment dated August 13, 2020 ("GIDC Judgement”)
declared the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 ("GIDC Act 2015") as valid and intra vires
the Constitution of Pakistan 1973. It further allowed recovery of GIDC that has become due up to July
31, 2020, by the gas company from their consumers in 48 equal monthly installments.

The Company has filed a suit before High Court of Sindh on September 18, 2020 on the grounds that
factual determination of the GIDC passed-on is to be carried out, which is pending adjudication.
Meanwhile the High Court of Sindh granted the Company an interim stay dated September 19, 2020
restraining the gas companies from taking coercive action against the Company for non-payment of
GIDC installments.

The Company has followed the relevant accounting standards and guidelines issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan in this regard.
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17.3 This represents provision against infrastructure fee levied by the Government of Sindh through Sindh
Finance (Amendment) Ordinance, 2001 and later. The levy of infrastructure fee is disputed and various
companies had filed appeals before the High Court of Sindh (SHC) and also had obtained stay from the
SHC. The SHC, on June 4, 2021, upheld the infrastructure levy by declaring it within competence of
provincial legislature. The Company has filed an appeal before the Honourable Supreme Court of
Pakistan to challenge this judgement, which is pending adjudication.

18. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

18.1 Contingencies

18.1.1 The Central Excise and Taxation Department had issued a demand notice for payment of sales tax of Rs
16.775 million. This represents sales tax levied on agricultural tyres supplied to approved assembly
plants which were otherwise exempt under SRO 553(1)/94 dated June 9, 1994 as amended vide SRO
555(1)/94 dated June 9, 1994 during the period from July 1994 to September 1995. The Company filed
an appeal with the Collector, Central Excise and Land Customs (Appeals) on November 25, 1997 which
was rejected. The Company filed an appeal against that order before the Customs, Central Excise and
Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal which had stayed the recovery of sales tax from the Company, subject to
the condition that the Company furnishes an indemnity bond to the satisfaction of the Collector of Sales
Tax. Accordingly, the Company furnished the indemnity bond dated March 18, 1998 of Rs 16.775 million.

The Company also filed an application No. B&CA/2.020/01/97 dated November 25, 1997 with the
Collector of Sales Tax (East), Karachi for grant of exemption from sales tax in terms of section 65 of the
Sales Tax Act, 1990. However, the FBR on finalisation of the report by the Collector of Sales Tax and
Central Excise (East), rejected the Company's application through letter No. C No. 1/52-STT/97 dated
July 19, 2000. The Company filed a constitutional petition No.1939/2000 against the decision of the
FBR in the High Court of Sindh under article 199 of the Constitution of Pakistan, 1973 which was
dismissed.

The Collector of Sales Tax and Central Excise (East), Karachi had adjusted refund claims filed by the
Company aggregating Rs 12.823 million against the aforementioned demand notice upto the year
ended June 30, 2002. The Company, during the year ended June 30, 2004, deposited the remaining
balance of Rs 3.952 million as 'payment under protest'.

However, during the year ended June 30, 2006, the Customs, Excise and Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal
allowed the Company's appeal and set aside the order of the Collector of Customs, Sales Tax and
Central Excise (Appeals). The Collector of Customs, Sales Tax and Central Excise (Appeals), during year
ended June 30, 2007, filed a request for rectification of error before the Custom, Excise and Sales Tax

Appellate Tribunal.
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During the year ended June 30, 2016, all verification proceedings were completed; however,
Commissioner Inland Revenue rejected the Company's application for refund being time barred as
application was filed after one year from the date of Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) order. The
Company has applied to the FBR for condonation of time limit under section 74 and is hopeful that
refund of Rs 16.775 million would be realised which is included in sales tax under protest (note 29).

Certain claims have been filed against the Company in respect of employees' matters. The aggregate
exposure of the Company under these claims amounts approximately to Rs. 40.627 million (2023: Rs
28.634 million). These cases are pending in various labour courts, appellate tribunals and High Court of
Sindh. The Company, based on the advice of its legal counsel, is of the view that it has a fair chance of

success in the appeals and accordingly no provision has been recognised in these financial statements.

Tax authorities passed orders dated October 18, 2016 under sections 161 / 205 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 in respect of monitoring of withholding of taxes for tax years 2010 and 2014 and issued
demand of Rs 11.889 million and Rs 20.060 million respectively on the premise that requisite tax was
not withheld by the Company at the time of making payments against various expenses. These
demands include Rs 1.551 million and Rs 3.401 million default surcharge under section 205 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Company filed appeals with the CIR(A) against the impugned orders. CIR(A) confirmed the orders
passed by the tax authority. The Company filed appeals before the ATIR against the orders of CIR(A)
which were decided on May 31, 2017, against the Company. The Company has filed references to the
High Court against the order of ATIR.

Further, the Company has deposited Rs 59.575 million against abovementioned demands and has
recognised this in other receivables (note 29) as 'Income tax paid under protest’. The Company, based
on advise of its legal advisor, is of the view that it has a fair chance of success in the appeals and
accordingly no provision has been recognised in these financial statements.

Tax authorities passed an order under sections 161 / 205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 in respect
of monitoring of withholding of taxes for the tax year 2013 and 2015 and issued demands of Rs 16.165
and Rs 29.675 million respectively (including default surcharge and penalty) on the premise that
requisite tax was not withheld by the Company at the time of making payments against incentive to
dealers and advertising and publicity.
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The Company filed appeals before the CIR(A) against the impugned order. The CIR(A) has confirmed the
order passed by the department. The Company, on August 20, 2018, has filed appeal before ATIR
against the order of CIR(A), however, the hearing on appeal is pending. Further, the Company has
deposited Rs 20.663 million against abovementioned demand and has recognised this in other
receivables (note 29) as 'Income tax paid under protest’. The Company, based on the advice of its tax
consultant, is of the view that it has a fair chance of success in the appeals and accordingly no provision
has been recognised in these financial statements.

18.1.5 The Company in response to the requirements of S.R.0. 655(1)/2007 paid the special excise duty
amounting to Rs 12.203 million during the period from July 2007 to October 2010. However, the
Company had inadvertently failed to adjust this duty against the input tax. The Company has filed
various applications to the FBR for adjustment of the abovementioned payment.

The FBR through its letter C.No. 2(2)ST&FE/Cond/2014 dated December 16, 2015 rejected the
applications. The Company has filed an appeal before the High Court of Sindh for condonation of time
which is pending for hearing. The management of the Company, based on the advice of its legal counsel,
is confident that its submissions shall be accepted and has a fair chance of success in the appeal and
accordingly no provision has been recognised in these financial statements.

18.1.6  The CIR selected the Company for audit under section 177 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the
tax year 2017. The department has made further amendment of assessment to the tax year 2017 and
made certain additions / adjustments to the taxable income.

On the basis of the additions / adjustments, a demand of Rs 1.271 million was raised and adjusted with
Company's refund. The Company has filed a rectification application to the concerned officer as the
Company believes that the department has overstated the taxable income by Rs 90 million. On May 22,
2018 the concerned officer passed rectification order in favour of the Company.

Further, the Company has filed appeal before CIR(A) against the above order but the order was
confirmed by the CIR(A). The Company, on May 22, 2019, then filed an appeal before ATIR against the
order of the CIR(A), however, the appeal is pending for hearing. The Company, based on the advice of its
tax consultant, is of the view that it has a fair chance of success in the appeals and accordingly no
provision has been recognised in these financial statements.

18.1.7 DCIR through its order dated July 2, 2019 made certain additions / adjustments to the Company's
taxable income for the tax year 2018 and reduced refund to Rs.351.368 million from Rs.513.531 million.
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The Company has filed an appeal to CIR(A) on July 30, 2019, against the order made by the DCIR, which
is pending to date. The Company, based on the advice of its tax consultants, is of the view that it has a
fair chance of success in the appeal and accordingly no provision has been recognised in these financial

statements.

CIR(A) through its order dated December 12, 2018 confirmed certain additions to the Company's
taxable income for the tax year 2006, previously made by DCIR through its order under section 221 and
section 122(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whereby, the DCIR had raised a demand of Rs 32.612
million which was adjusted from the refunds of the Company.

The Company has filed an appeal on February 14, 2019, before ATIR against the order of the CIR(A)
which is pending for hearing. The Company, based on the advice of its tax consultant, is of the view that
it has a fair chance of success in the appeal and accordingly no provision has been recognised in these
financial statements.

The tax authorities issued notices under section 176 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2007 in respect of
short deduction of tax on the basis of sales tax returns filed for the tax years 2016 and 2017 amounting
to Rs 7.961 million and Rs 69.629 million respectively. The Company has furnished the reconciliation
and other required details to the concerned officer. DCIR through its order dated October 31, 2019 and
September 23, 2019, passed order for recovery of Rs 2.126 million and 2.917 million including default
surcharge and penalty. The Company on, November 20, 2019 filed appeal before the CIR(A) against the
said orders, however, hearing in appeal is pending. The Company, based on the advice of its tax
consultant, is of the view that it has a fair chance of success in the appeal and accordingly no provision
has been recognised in these financial statements.

The Company has received an order from DCIR dated March 7, 2018 whereby DCIR disallowed
adjustment of input tax on goods and services amounting to Rs 63.248 million along with default
surcharge calculated upon the time of payment and penalty. The Company had paid Rs 17.928 million
(sales tax under protest - note 29) to obtain stay against the aforementioned demand order. The case
has been heard by the CIR(A) and the demand was upheld via order dated July 31, 2019. The Company
filed an appeal on August 22, 2019 before ATIR against the order dated July 31, 2019 which is pending
adjudication. The Company, based on the advice of its tax consultant, is of the view that it has a fair
chance of success in the appeal and accordingly no provision has been recognised in these financial

statements.
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18.1.11 On July 2, 2019, the Company received an order from the DCIR wherein the DCIR made a total demand
of Rs 234.034 million along with penalty and default surcharge for the tax periods from July 2016 to
June 2018 in respect of inadmissible input tax, short payment of further tax and sales tax withholding
claimed by the Company.

The Company filed an appeal to CIR(A) where CIR(A) upheld the demand of DCIR via order dated August
22, 2019. The Company filed an appeal before ATIR on September 13, 2019, against the order dated
August 22, 2019 which is pending adjudication before the ATIR. The Company, based on the advice of
its tax consultant, is of the view that it has a fair chance of success in the appeal and accordingly no
provision has been recognised in these financial statements.

18.1.12 ACIR through its order dated June 30, 2021, made certain additions and adjustment to the Company's
taxable income for the tax year 2015 and raised a demand of Rs.251.402 million. The Company has filed

an appeal before the CIR (A) against the above mentioned order.

CIR(A), through its order dated June 15, 2022, has partially granted relief in Company's favour and
upheld ACIR decision on disallowance of tax credits and WWF paid under the provincial act. As a result

demand has been reduced to Rs.32.842 million.

The Company has filed appeal before ATIR against the disallowance made by CIR(A) which is pending
adjudication. The Company, based on the advice of its tax consultant, is of the view that it has a fair
chance of success in the appeal and accordingly no provision has been recognised in these financial

statements.

18.1.13 On June 30, 2022, the Company received an order from the DCIR wherein the DCIR raised a demand of
Rs.340.094 million, penalty of Rs.17.004 million and default surcharge to be computed at the time of
payment. The demand is based on the comparison of the declarations in sales tax returns and income
tax returns filed by the Company during tax period July 2016 to June 2017.

The Company filed an appeal before CIR(A) on July 28, 2022 against the above mentioned order, who
vide its order dated February 28, 2023 has decided the case in favour of the Company. However, the CIR
has filed an appeal before ATIR against order of CIR(A), which is sub-judice before ATIR.

18.1.14 The Company's case was selected for sales tax audit for tax year 2018. The DCIR passed an order dated

September 19, 2022 whereby the DCIR made a demand of Rs.276.047 million and also imposed a
penalty of Rs.13.802 million.
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The Company has filed an appeal against the said order before CIR(A) which through its order dated
May 26, 2023 confirmed the demand of Rs. 9.260 million, deleted the demand of Rs. 60.030 million and
remanded back the demand of Rs. 206.759 million for re-examination. The department has filed an
appeal against the deletion and remand back before ATIR, which is pending adjudication. The Company,
based on the advice of its tax consultant, is of the view that it has a fair chance of success in the appeal
and accordingly no provision has been recognised in these financial statements.

The ADCIR through its order dated April 29, 2023, made certain adjustment to the Company's taxable
income for the tax year 2020 and reduced tax refund to Rs. 84.459 million from Rs.387.266 million. The
Company on May 25, 2023, has filed an appeal before the CIR (A) against the said order which is pending
adjudication. The Company, based on the advice of its tax consultant, is of the view that it has a fair
chance of success in the appeal and accordingly no provision has been recognised in these financial

statements.

The ADCIR through its order dated October 16, 2023, made certain adjustment to the Company's
taxable income for the tax year 2021 and reduced tax refund to Rs.123.681 million from Rs.345.878
million. The Company on November 8, 2023 has filed an appeal before the CIR (A) against the
abovementioned order, which is pending adjudication.

The Company, based on the advice of its tax consultant, is of the view that it has a fair chance of
success in the appeal and accordingly no provision has been recognised in these financial statements.

The Company received certain notices from Pakistan Standards and Quality Control Authority (PSQCA)
requiring the Company to submit application for grant of license and certification mark. The Company
filed a suit against the notices before Honourable High Court of Sindh seeking declaration and
permanent injunction. The Honourable High Court of Sindh on September 06, 2023 granted interim stay
and barred PSQCA from taking any coercive action. The main Suit is currently fixed before Additional
Registrar for filing of written statements on behalf of PSQCA. The Company based on advice of its legal
consultant expects a favourable resolution of this matter.

The Company's case was selected for sales tax audit for period from July 2018 to June 2019. The DCIR
through its order dated June 29, 2024 has raise a demand of Rs.40.041 million. The Company on July
09, 2024 has filed an appeal before ATIR against the said order, which is pending adjudication.

The Company has paid Rs. 37.359 million, per the advice of its tax consultant, in order to avoid any
coercive action by the department. The aforementioned amount has been recorded as sales tax paid
under protest (note 29). The Company, based on the advice of its tax consultant, is of the view that it has
a fair chance of success in the case and accordingly no provision has been recognised in these financial

statements.
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Note
18.1.19 Guarantees issued by
commercial banks on behalf of the Company

18.1.20 Post dated cheques issued to the Collector of
customs against duty on imported plant & machinery,

raw materials and stores & spares

18.2 Commitments

In respect of:

Letters of credit for capital expenditure

Letters of credit for purchase of raw materials
and stores & spares

Purchase orders issued to local suppliers for
capital expenditure

Sales contracts entered into by the Company

Tentative schedules for supply of tyre

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 19.1

Capital work-in-progress 19.7
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2024 2023

--- Rupees in '000 ---

481,921 328,361
41,928 41,928
42,068 12,719

2,181,997 2,366,535
136,043 136,978
301,120 379,045

2,485,107 2,019,414

7,137,840 7,434,108
180,311 248,273

7,318,151 7,682,381




19.1 Operating fixed assets

AtJuly 1,2022

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment
Net book value

Year ended June 30, 2023
Transfers from CWIP
Revaluation (note 7.4 )
Disposals

- cost
- accumulated depreciation

Depreciation charge (note 19.4)
Closing net book value

At June 30, 2023
Revaluation / cost
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment
Net book value

Year ended June 30, 2024
Transfers from CWIP
Disposals

- cost
- accumulated depreciation

Depreciation charge (note 19.4)
Closing net book value

At June 30, 2024
Revaluation / cost
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment
Net book value

Depreciation rate (% per annum)

Leasehold

land

leasehold
land

Buildings on

Electrical
installations

Plant &
machinery

Boilers and
accessories

Laboratory

equipment

Moulds

Vehicles

Furniture

and
fixtures

Factory and
office
equipment

Computer Total

equipment

39452 1126049 206884 6136671 460828 140299 720724 369711 42419 248145 79090 9570272

- 446910 151366 2845118 236777 83995 356152 230599 33616 201,408 74447 4,660,388

- - - 691 - - 363 - - - - 1,064
39452 679139 65518 3290862 224051 56304 364209 139,112 8803 46,737 4643 4908830

- 10886 2475 482349 8077 - - 58,075 - 9,394 3154 574410
2,473,748 - - - - - - - - - - 2473748
- - - 2,531 - - 3827|| 37,176 - 2,287 668 46,489

- - - (2.531) - - (3827)| (28224) -l 2287 (668)||  (37,537)

- - - - - - - 8952 - - - 8952

- 49892 11,497 267,715 40406 15399 55742 52,721 2722 15348 2486 513928
2513200 640,133 46496 3505496 191,722 40905 308467 135514 6081 40783 5311 7,434,108
2513200 1136935 209359 6616489 468905 140299 716897 390610 42419 255252 81576 12571941
- 496802 162863 3110802 277183 99394 408067 255096 36338 214469 76265 5136779

- - - 691 - - 363 - - - - 1,054
2513200 640,133 46496 3505496 191,722 40905 308467 135514 6081 40783 5311 7,434,108
- 12437 2947 70,488 24,959 3506 84,496 15290 2310 14224 11,938 242,595

- - - - - - - |[ 52960 - 1,862 178 55,000

- - - - - - - || (38,604) -l (1,862) (110)||  (40,576)

= = - - - - - 14356 - - 68 14,424

- 50668 11,000 286827 41,820 11995 57,535 44,876 1,984 15321 2413 524,439
2513200 601,902 38443 3,289,157 174861 32416 335428 91572 6407 39686 14768 7,137,840
2,513,200 1,149,372 212,306 6,686,977 493,864 143805 801,393 352,940 44,729 267,614 93,336 12,759,536
- 547470 173863 3,397,129 319,003 111,380 465602 261,368 38322 227,928 78,568 5,620,642

- - - 691 - - 363 - - - - 1,054
2513200 601,902 38443 3,289,157 174861 32416 335428 91572 6407 39686 14768 7,137,840

5 10 5 10 15 10 20 10 15 25
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19.2

19.3

19.4

19.5

19.6

Cost of items of operating fixed assets that are fully depreciated amounted to Rs.1,947.396 million (2023:
Rs.1,705.273 million).

Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of the Company are as follows:

L . Usage of immovable Total area Covered area
ocation
property (In square meter) (In square meter)
a) H-23/2, Landhi Industrial Manufacturing facility 101,000 77,000
Trading Estate, Landhi, Karachi
b) Plot # B/ 30 - B SITE Area Warehouse facility 12,632 6,648

Sukkur

2024 2023
Depreciation charge has been Note --- Rupees in '000 ---
allocated as follows:

Cost of goods manufactured 32.1 482,173 468,246
Administrative expenses 33 10,660 17,027
Distribution cost 34 31,606 28,655

524,439 513,928

Had the operating fixed assets been recognised under the cost model, the carrying amount of leasehold
lands would have been Rs. 39.452 million.

The details of operating fixed assets disposed off during the year are as follows:

Particulars of Cost Accumulated Net book Sale Gain Mode of Sold to
assets depreciation value proceeds disposal

Assets having net book amount .

exceeding Rs. 500,000 each = ammmmmmmma=a Rupees N '000 ...........

Vehicles

Suzuki Swift 3,234 539 2,695 3,234 539 Company Mr. Waseem Siddiqui
policy (Ex - Employee)

Toyota Yaris 2,675 1,025 1,650 1,895 245 Company Mr. Sohail Azim
policy (Ex - Employee)

Toyota Yaris 1,975 790 1,185 1,350 165 Company Mr. Khurram
policy (Ex - Employee)

Toyota Corolla 4,005 1,736 2,269 2,603 334 Company Mr. Mussarat Ahmed
policy (Ex - Employee)

Toyota Corolla 3,375 1,688 1,687 1,969 282 Company Mr. Yasir Ali Qureshi
policy (Ex - Employee)

Honda Civic 3,392 1,639 1,753 2,035 282 Company Mr. Faheem Ahmed Khan
policy (Ex - Employee)

Toyota Corolla 3,375 1,913 1,462 2,391 929 Company Mr. M. Siddiqui Sheikh
policy (Ex - Employee)

Toyota Corolla 3,375 2,025 1,350 2,306 956 Company Mr. Masood Hussain
policy (Ex - Employee)

25,406 11,355 14,051 17,783 3,732

Various assets having net

amount upto Rs 500,000 29,594 29,221 373 8,752 8,379

June 30, 2024 55,000 40,576 14,424 26,535 12,111
June 30, 2023 46,489 37,635 8954 12,048 3,094
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19.7 Capital work-in-progress As at July 1, Additions Transfers As at June 30,
2023 2024
------------------ Rupees in '000 -------======nn---
Buildings 1,824 17,598 12,437 6,985
Electrical installations 4618 10,458 2,947 12,129
Plant and machinery 69,719 25,428 70,488 24,659
Boilers and accessories 28,485 70,380 24,959 73,906
Moulds 115,726 25,286 84,496 56,516
Vehicles 9,054 6,236 15,290 -
Factory and office equipment 17,519 60 14,224 3,355
Laboratory equipment - 8,642 3,606 5,036
Computer equipment 1,920 10,018 11,938 =
Furniture and fixtures 1,683 627 2,310 -
250,548 174,633 242,595 182,586
Provision for a doubtful advance (2,275) - - (2,275)
248,273 174,633 242,595 180,311

19.7.1

19.7.2

20.

20.1

20.2

Capital work in progress includes Rs.51.418 million (2023: Rs.21.863 million) representing advance
payments made to suppliers for procurement of operating fixed assets.

During the year, the Company has capitalised borrowing costs amounting to Rs: Nil (2023: Rs.21.433
million) on its qualifying assets at the current year's weighted average rate of its general borrowings of Nil
(2023:18.16% per annum).

2024 2023

INTANGIBLE ASSETS Note --- Rupees in '000 ---
Cost

At beginning of the year 85,870 83,712
Additions during the year 651 2,158
At the end of the year 20.1 86,521 85,870
Accumulated amortisation

At beginning of the year 83,535 82,589
Amortisation charge for the year 20.2 1,365 946
At the end of the year 84,900 83,535
Net book value 1,621 2,335
Amortisation rate (% per annum) 33.33 33.33

Intangible assets represents software licenses and implementation cost.

The amortisation charge for the year has been allocated to administrative expenses (note 33).
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21. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY - quoted

Ghandhara Industries Limited

- Equity accounted investment

Balance at beginning of the year

Share of profit / (loss) for the year

Share of other comprehensive income for the year
Balance at the end of the year

2024 2023

Note --- Rupees in '000 ---
24,902 25918
1,047 (1,016)
7,823 -
21.1 33,772 24,902

21.1 Investment in Ghandhara Industries Limited (GIL) represents 207,400 (2023: 201,400) fully paid ordinary
shares of Rs 10 each representing 0.473% (2023: 0.473%) of its issued, subscribed and paid-up share
capital as at June 30, 2024. GIL was incorporated on February 23, 1963. GIL's shares are quoted on
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activity is the assembly, progressive manufacturing and
sale of Isuzu trucks, buses and pick ups. The registered office of the Company is at F-3, Hub Chowki Road,
S.I.TE, Karachi. The manufacturing facilities of GIL are located at S.|.T.E., Karachi with regional offices at

Lahore, Multan, Rawalpindi and Peshawar.

21.2 The Company considers GIL as its associate and follows equity accounting as it has significant influence

over GIL based on common directorship.

21.3 The summary of financial information / reconciliation of GIL as at March 31, 2024 is as follows:
Un-audited  Un-audited

As at As at
March 31 March 31

Summarised statement of financial position
Non current assets
Current assets

Non current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net assets

Reconciliation to carrying amount
Net assets at beginning of the year
Profit / (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Net assets at the end of the year
Company's share (Percentage)
Company's share

Pre-acquisition profits

Carrying amount of investment
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2024 2023

--- Rupees in '000 ---

6,073,161 4,391,714
10,760,169 12,316,752
16,833,330 16,708,466

175,297 142,685

8,133,036 | | 9,916,074

8,308,333 10,058,759

8,524,997 6,649,707

6,649,707 6,364,488

221,469  (214,781)
1,653,821 -
8,524,997 6,649,707

0.473% 0.473%
40,323 31,453
(6,551) (6,551)
33,772 24,902




21.4

21.5

22.

22.1

22.2

22.3

22.4
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Nine months period ended
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023

--- Rupees in '000 ---

Summarised profit or loss

Revenue 9,809,175 12,750,910
Profit before tax 512,735 476,433
Profit after tax 302,862 260,817

The above figures are based on unaudited condensed interim financial information of GIL for the nine
months period ended March 31, 2024. The latest financial statements of GIL as at June 30, 2024 are not
presently available. Accordingly, results of operations of first three quarters of financial year 2024 and last
quarter of financial year 2023 have been considered for accounting purpose.

The market value of investment as at June 30, 2024 was Rs. 55.061 million (2023: Rs. 16.221 million).

2024 2023

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES Note --- Rupees in '000 ---

Considered good - secured
Loans and advances due from:

Related Parties - Key management personnel 111 278
Other employees 9,671 9,943
22.1 9,782 10,221

Less: recoverable within one year
Related Parties - Key management personnel 111 167
Other employees 4,878 5,067
27 4,989 5234
4,793 4,987

These represent interest free loans and advances provided to key management personnel and employees
as per the terms of employment. Loans are provided for purchase of motor vehicles and advances for
furnishing of house. Loans are repayable and advances are amortisable over a period of two to five years
by way of monthly instalments. These are secured against respective motor vehicles and employees'
vested retirement benefits.

The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at the end of any month during the year ended June 30,
2024 from key management personnel against loans and advances aggregated Rs. 0.264 million (2023: Rs

0.431 million).

The carrying values of these loans and advances are neither past due nor impaired. The credit quality of
these financial assets can be assessed with reference to no default in recent history.

Long term loans have been carried at cost as the effect of carrying these balances at amortised cost would
not be material in the overall context of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023

23 LONG TERM DEPOSITS --- Rupees in '000 ---

Considered good - unsecured and interest free

Security deposits for:

Utilities 6,993 6,996
Others 12,878 12,908
19,871 19,904
Provision for doubtful deposit (436) (436)
19,435 19,468
24. STORES AND SPARES
In hand 865,179 791,168
Provision for slow moving stores (50,689) (31,261)
814,490 759,907

2024 2023

25. STOCKS Note --- Rupees in '000 ---

Raw materials

In hand 1,550,469 1,607,009

In transit 623,385 727,300

2,173,854 2,334,309
Work-in-process 366,579 368,897

Finished goods - in hand 25.1 2,537,646 2,108,689

5,078,079 4,811,895

25.1 Finished goods include items costing Rs. 254.215 million (2023 : Rs. 163.132 million) which are stated at
their net realisable values aggregating Rs. 196.386 million (2023: Rs 103.308 million). The aggregate
amount (reversed) / charged to profit or loss in respect of stocks written down to their net realisable value
is Rs (1.862) million (2023: Rs. 13.708 million).
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26.1

26.2

26.3

TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Considered good

Associated Companies
Ghandhara Industries Limited
Ghandhara Automobiles Limited
Ghandhara DF (Private) Limited
Gammon Pakistan Limited

Others
Condidered good
Condidered doubtful

Provision for expected credit loss

Provision for expected credit loss

Balance at beginning of the year
Provision made during the year - net
Balance at the end of the year

Note

26.1

33
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2024 2023

--- Rupees in '000 ---

6,470 20,347
3,203 -
1,757 -

631 460
12,061 20,807
3,681,409 2,920,534
65,448 53,096
3,758,918 2,994,437
(65,448) (53,096)
3,693,470 2,941,341
53,096 46,302
12,352 6,794
65,448 53,096

The maximum aggregate amount due from related parties at the end of any month during the year was

Rs.91.481 million (2023: Rs. 102.555 million).

The ageing analysis of aggregate trade debts at reporting date is as follows:

0to 30 days

31 to 180 days
181 to 270 days
271 to 360 days
Over one year

Provision for expected credit loss

Associated Companies

Others

11,269 13814 3,149,509 2,788,449
792 6,993 493,726 129,639

- - 45,715 5,879

5 - 4,126 49,663

5 - 53,781 -
12,061 20,807 3,746,857 2,973,630
- (65,448) (53,096)
12,061 20,807 3,681,409 2,920,534
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 YA

27. LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good Note --- Rupees in '000 ---
Secured
Current portion of long term loans
and advances 22 4,989 5,234
Unsecured

Loans and advances due from:

- employees 27.1 20,000 19,714
- suppliers, contractors and others 89,810 120,856
Less: provision for doubtful advance (1,324) (1,324)
108,486 139,246
113,475 144,480
27.1 These represent interest free festival loans, general loans, special loans, salary advance and Eid advance

provided to employees in accordance with the Company's policy and have maturities upto twelve months.

2024 A

28. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS Note --- Rupees in '000 ---

Considered good and unsecured

Trade deposits - interest free 11,819 17,646
Call deposit receipts 28.1 - 3,000
Prepayments 12,233 15,975

Current account balances with

statutory authorities 15.4 13,993 13,993
38,045 50,614
28.1 These represent interest free call deposit receipts issued from a commercial bank in favour of respective

commandants of various spares depots of the Pakistan Army against supply of tyres.
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2024 2023
OTHER RECEIVABLES - unsecured Note --- Rupees in '000 ---
Export benefit receivable (duty drawback) 658 658
Provision for doubtful export benefit receivable (658) (658)
Sales tax paid under protest 18.1.1,18.1.10 & 18.1.18 72,062 34,703
Custom duty rebates recoverable 89,705 89,705
Provision for custom duty rebates recoverable (89,705) (89,705)
Margin and deposits against bank guarantees 22,542 18,768
Income tax paid under protest 18.1.3,18.1.4 & 29.1 121,361 121,361
Others 43,546 35617
Provision for doubtful receivables (1,537) (1,537)
42,009 34,080
257,974 208,912

Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) through its order dated June 14, 2017 made certain
additions and adjustment to the Company's taxable income for the tax year 2016 and issued a demand of
Rs. 41.123 million which the Company had deposited and recognised as 'Income tax paid under protest'’.
After due process of appeals, ATIR on April 25, 2022 has decided the case in favour of the Company and an
appeal effect ATIR order is pending.

2024 2023

CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note --- Rupees in '000 ---

With banks in:

- current accounts 203,437 129,688

- deposit account 30.1 9,793 8,639
213,230 138,327

Cash and cheques in-hand 11,205 1,348
224,435 139,675

Deposit account carries mark-up at the weighted average rate of 20.5% (2023: 15.31%) per annum.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

31.

32.

32.1

SALES - net
Manufactured goods
Local
Export

Trading goods

Less:

- sales tax

- discounts

- commission and allowances

COST OF SALES

Opening stock of finished goods
Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods purchased

Closing stock of finished goods

Cost of goods manufactured
Opening work-in-process

Raw materials consumed
Stores and spares consumed
Salaries, wages and benefits
Royalty fee

Travelling, conveyance and entertainment
Vehicles running expenses
Legal and professional charges
Power and fuel

Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

Tyre replacement allowance

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Printing and stationery
Postage and telephone
Transportation

Fees and subscriptions
Security and maintenance
Other manufacturing expenses

Closing work-in-process
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Note

32.1

25

32.3

32.4
32.2

32.5

17.1
19.4

25

2024 2023

--- Rupees in '000 ---

24,896,346 | [ 17,912,581
295,355 219,015
25,191,701 18,131,596
3,953 90,385
25,195,654 18221081
3,873,684 | [ 2,734,932
691,747 315224
91,653 153,166
4,657,084 3203322
20,538,570  15018,659
2,108,689  1907,017
17,689,617 | [ 12,885,973
- 42,691
17,689,617 12,028,664
(2,537,646)  (2,108,689)
17,260,660 12,726,992
368,897 333,240
11,053,568 8,229,223
511,355 318,378
2,512,751 1,897,152
315,741 225,856
5,894 5,762
39,788 34,792
4,876 6,096
2,148,189 1,229,108
41,037 46,122
79,751 53,610
117,812 99,144
94,365 118,109
482,173 468,246
5,230 4,205
3,419 3,259
221,954 150,328
1,716 1,233
29,358 21,809
18,322 9,198
18,056,196 13,254,370
(366,579)  (368,897)
17,689,617 12885973




32.2

32.3

324

32.5

33.

33.1
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The royalty fee pertains to Continental Tire The Americas, LLC with registered address 1830 MacMillan

Park Drive Fort Mill, South Carolina 29707, United States of America.

Raw materials consumed
Opening stock

Purchases during the year

Closing stock

Note

25

2024 2023

--- Rupees in '000 ---

2,334,309 3,059,163
10,893,113 7,504,369
13,227,422 10,563,532
(2,173,854)  (2,334,309)
11,053,568 8,229,223

Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 81.622 million (2023: Rs. 76.665 million) and Rs. 18.677 million
(2023: Rs. 17.118 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits gratuity and provident fund respectively.

Expense in respect of short term leases amounted to Rs. 41.037 million (2023: Rs. 46.122 million).

2024 2023

--- Rupees in '000 ---

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits

Travelling and conveyance

Vehicles running expenses

Legal and professional charges
Auditors' remuneration

Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation

Printing and stationery

Postage and telephone

Provision for expected credit loss - net
Computer expenses

Directors' fee

Fees and subscriptions

Other expenses

Note

33.1

33.2

19.4
20.2

26.1

33.3

266,567 211,606
9,173 4,323
11,752 10,436
31,605 7,366
2,600 2,600

= 68

3,834 2,811
974 771
10,660 17,027
1,365 946
2,001 1,860
938 965
12,352 6,794
31,544 25,300
14,700 11,500
3,303 3,658
5,900 4,158
409,268 312,089

Salaries and benefits include Rs 25.44 million (2023: Rs 10.424 million) and Rs 6.445 million (2023: Rs
6.008 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits gratuity and provident fund respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023

33.2 Auditors’ remuneration --- Rupees in '000 ---

Fee for audit, half yearly review and

Code of Corporate Governance review 2,000 2,000
Statutory certifications 350 350
2,350 2,350

Out-of-pocket expenses 250 250
2,600 2,600

33.3 Directors' fee

Aggregate amount charged in these financial statements amounts to Rs 14.70 million
(2023: Rs 11.50 million) for meetings fee to 10 (2023: 8) directors.

2024 2023

34. DISTRIBUTION COST Note --- Rupees in '000 ---
Salaries and benefits 34.1 234,212 185,666
Travelling, conveyance and entertainment 72,050 46,029
Vehicle running expenses 9,709 11,941
Legal and professional charges 149 247
Advertisement and sales promotion 111,072 112,790
Rent, rates and taxes 34.2 43,022 35910
Insurance 1,919 1,450
Repairs and maintenance 2,021 1,837
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 19.4 31,606 28,655
Depreciation on right-of-use assets - 1,317
Printing and stationery 1,369 3,381
Postage and telephone 3,128 3,323
Freight and insurance 270,315 172,431
Gas and electricity 7,320 5,600
Fees and subscriptions 538 427
Security and maintenance 15,343 10,729
Other expenses 5,214 4,439

808,987 626,172

34.1 Salaries and benefits include Rs. 17.456 million (2023: Rs 9.881 million) and Rs. 2.682 million (2023: Rs
2.265 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits gratuity and provident fund respectively.

34.2 Expense in respect of short term leases amounted to Rs. 43.022 million (2023: Rs 35.91 million).
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35. OTHER INCOME Note --- Rupees in '000 ---
Profit on bank deposits - conventional bank 1,865 1,249
Sale of scrap - net of sales tax 87,385 95,497
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets 12,111 3,094
Exchange gain - net 38,513 -
Advances from customers - written back 5,124 -
Others 165 488
145,163 100,328
36. OTHER EXPENSES
Workers' profit participation fund 15.2 11,453 -
Workers' welfare fund 15 4,352 -
Exchange loss - net - 354,030
Donations 36.1 14,126 500
29,931 354,530
36.1 Donations during the year are as follows:
Donee
Wagqf-e-Kuli Khan 36.1.1 5,726 -
The Citizens Foundation 3,400 -
Al Khidmat Welfare Society 5,000 -
Pakistan Eye Bank Society Hospital - 500
14,126 500

36.1.1 Lt Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak and Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak, Directors of the Company, are trustees
of Wagf-e-Kuli Khan.

2024 YA

31. FINANCE COST Note --- Rupees in '000 ---
Mark-up on:
- long term finances 56,093 81,851
- short term finances 462,190 441,197
- running finances 1,122,403 740,343
Interest on workers' profit participation fund 15.2 - 258
Interest cost on GIDC liability - 6,839
Bank charges and guarantee commission 39,574 21,318

1,680,260 1,291,806
38. LEVIES AND INCOME TAXATION

38.1 This represents final taxes paid under section 154 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (ITO, 2001), representing
levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.

38.2 This represents portion of minimum tax paid under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance (ITO, 2001),
representing levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21 / IAS 37.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

38.3

38.4

38.5

38.6

39.

39.1

39.2

2024 2023

TAXATION Note --- Rupees in '000 ---

Current tax

for the year including super taxes 245,118 4,195

Prior year tax 38.5 (47,021) (4,463)
Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (64,413) (212,116)

Impact of change in tax rate 38.6 56,939 -

(7,474) (212,116)

Tax charge / (reversal) for the year 190,623 (212,384)

Reconciliation of current tax charge charged as per tax laws for the year, with current tax recognised in

the profit and loss account, is as follows: 2024 2023

--- Rupees in '000 ---

Current tax liability for the year as per applicable tax laws 321,109 190,325
Portion of current tax liability as per tax laws, representing

income tax under IAS 12 (245,118) (4,195)
Portion of current tax computed as per tax laws, representing

levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/IAS 37 (75,991) (186,130)

This represents amount which has been netted off against the tax charge for the year and do not impact
the total tax charge of Rs.190.623 million (2023: reversal of Rs.212.384 million) as a similar adjustment has
been made to the deferred tax.

In accordance with the Finance Act, 2024, super tax at the rate upto 10% has been levied in addition to the
corporate tax rate of 29%. Accordingly, the Company has recorded deferred tax at 37% (2023 : 33%) in
accordance with applicable accounting and reporting standards.

2024 2023

EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE --- Rupees in '000 ---

Basic earnings / (loss) per share

Profit / (loss) after taxation 229,060 (167,364)
--- Number of shares ---
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 121,933,350 121,933,350
--- Rupees ---
Earnings / (loss) per share 1.88 (1.37)

Diluted earnings per share

There are no dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding as at June 30, 2024 and 2023.
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40. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS Note --- Rupees in '000 ---

Profit / (loss) before income taxation, 495,674 (193,618)
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 19.1 524,439 513,928
Amortisation 20 1,365 946
Depreciation on right-of-use assets - 1,317
Provision for staff retirement gratuity 9.1.7 124,518 96,978
Employees compensated absences 9.2 20,001 21,550
Net realisable value (reversal) / charge 25.1 (1,862) 13,708
Provision for expected credit loss - net 26.1 12,352 6,794
Profit on bank deposits 35 (1,865) (1,249)
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets 35 (12,111) (3,094)
Finance cost 37 1,680,260 1,291,806
Share of net (profit) / loss of an associate 21 (1,047) 1,016
Working capital changes 40.1 (950,362) 391,019

1,891,362 2,141,101

40.1 Working capital changes
(increase) / decrease in current assets:

- Stores and spares (54,583) (66,486)
- Stocks (264,322) 473817
- Trade debts (764,481) (429,763)
- Loans and advances 31,005 4,165
- Deposits and prepayments 12,569 6,774
- Other receivables (49,062) 8,277

(1,088,874) (3216)

Increase in current liabilities:
- Trade and other payables and provision 138,512 394,235
(950,362) 391,019

41. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of following:

2024 2023

Note --- Rupees in '000 ---
Running finances under mark-up arrangements 14 (4,673,327)  (4,426,247)
Cash and bank balances 30 224,435 139,675

(4,448,892)  (4,286,572)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

42.

42.1

42.2

42.3

43.

43.1

44,

REMUNERATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements for the year for remuneration, including
certain benefits to the Chief Executive and other executives of the Company is as follows:

Chief Executive Executives
2024 2023 2024 2023

Managerial remuneration and

allowances 69,545 59,440 231,953 163,339
Meeting fee 1,300 1,200 - -
Bonus 7,000 - 22,773 -
Company's contribution to provident

fund and gratuity scheme 18,698 6,930 35,638 12,731
Medical 263 370 18,162 12,407
Leave passage 3,500 3,920 6,296 7,282
Others 5,757 6,392 38,343 25,759

106,063 78,252 353,165 221,518
Number of persons 1 1 45 30

The Chief Executive and some of the executives are provided with free use of the Company maintained
cars in accordance with the terms of the employment.

The Company considers its chief executive and directors as key management personnel.

No remuneration is being paid / payable to the directors of the Company other than meeting fee as
disclosed in note 33.3 to these financial statements.

2024 2023

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION --- Number of units ---
Capacity: Tyre sets 4,420,344 4,342,399
Production: Tyre sets 2,008,491 1,673,111

Actual production was sufficient to meet the demand.
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of associated companies, companies in which directors are interested, staff
retirement benefit funds, key management personnel and close members of the families of the key
management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with
various related parties at agreed terms approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. Significant
transactions with related parties are as follows:
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2024 2023

--- Rupees in '000 ---
With associated companies / undertaking

- Sales 359,451 330,872
- Purchases - 754
- Sharing of expenses - 126
- Rent expense 900 1,800
- Donation 5,726 -

With other related parties
- Salaries and benefits Note 42
- Meeting fees Note 33.3

Contributions to;
- Staff provident fund 27,804 25,391
- Staff retirement benefits - Gratuity Note 9.1

Amounts due from and to related parties are shown under, trade and other payables (note 15), investment
in an associated company (note 21), long term loans and advances (note 22), trade debts (note 26).

44.1 Names of the related parties with whom the Company had transactions during the year:
Nature of Basis of Aggregatg i (.)f
. . . . shareholding in
relationship relationship the Company
Ghandhara Industries Limited Associated company Common directors N/A
(also see note 21.2)
Ghandhara Automobiles Limited Associated company Common directors N/A
Ghandhara DF (Private) Limited Associated company Common directors N/A
Bibojee Services (Private) Limited Associated company Common directors 27.79
Gammon Pakistan Limited Associated company Common directors N/A
Pakistan Kuwait Investment
Company (Private) Limited Associated company Common directors 30
Wagf-e-Kuli Khan Associated undertaking Common directors N/A
Staff provident fund Employee benefit scheme Employee benefit scheme N/A
Staff gratuity schemes Employee benefit scheme Employee benefit scheme N/A
Lt Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak Key management personnel  Director 0.40
Mr. Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak Key management personnel  Director 1.75
Mr. Hussain Kuli Khan Key management personnel  Chief Executive 0.00017
Mr. Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak Key management personnel  Director 0.000008
Mr. Atif Anwar Key management personnel  Director N/A
Mr. Ikram-ul-Majeed Sehgal Key management personnel  Director 0.000011
Mr. Manzoor Ahmed Key management personnel  Director N/A
Mr. Naeem A. Sattar Key management personnel  Director N/A
Mrs. Nazia Qureshi Key management personnel  Director N/A

Syed Ahmed Igbal Ashraf Key management personnel  Director 0.000008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

45. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Based on un-audited draft financial statements of the Fund, the investments out of the provident fund for
the year ended June 30, 2024, have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
46.1 Financial risk factors

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- credit risk;

- liquidity risk; and

- market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk).

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring
the Company's risk management policies. The Company's overall risk management program focuses
on providing maximum return to shareholders.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risk and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed reqularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Company's activities.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of accounting loss being caused if counterparty fails to perform as
contracted or discharge an obligation. Credit risk mainly arises from loans & advances, deposits, trade
debts, other receivables and balances with banks. Out of the total financial assets aggregating Rs
4,034.492 million (2023: Rs 3,203.915 million) as detailed in note 46.3 below, those that are subject to credit
risk aggregate Rs 4,032.287 million (2023: Rs 3,202.567 million), details of which are as follows:

2024 2023

--- Rupees in '000 ---

Long term loans and advances 4,793 4,987
Long term deposits 19,435 19,468
Trade debts 3,693,470 2,941,341
Loans and advances 24,989 24,948
Deposits 11,819 20,646
Other receivables 64,551 52,848
Bank balances 213,230 138,327

4,032,287 3,202,565
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Financial assets credit risk primarily exists in cash and cash equivalents and credit exposure to Original
Equipment Manufacturers, Replacement Market Dealers and Government Institutions, including
outstanding receivables and committed transactions. The Company does not have significant exposure to
any individual counterparty. To reduce exposure to credit risk with respect to trade debts the Company has
developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are applied to its customers.

If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating,
risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in
accordance with limits set by the board. The compliance with credit limits by customers is regularly
monitored by line management. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through
exposure to individual customers, specific industry sectors and/or regions. The management also
continuously monitors the credit exposure towards the customers. Where considered necessary, advance
payments are obtained from certain parties.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts by type of counter party as at reporting date is as

follows:
--- Rupees in '000 ---
Original equipment manufacturers 917,154 706,907
Government institutions 310,851 659,624
Replacement market 2,530,913 1,627,906
3,758,918 2,994,437
Provision for expected credit losses (65,448) (53,096)

3,693,470 2,941,341

All the trade debts at the reporting date represent domestic parties.

The Company monitors the credit quality of its bank balances with reference to historical performance of
such assets and available external credit ratings. The bank balances aggregating Rs. 213.23 million placed
with banks have a short term credit rating of at least A. Accordingly, the management does not expect any
counter party to fail in meeting their obligation.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated
with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the reporting date to contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Maturity
between
one &
two years

Maturity
above
three years

Maturity

Carrying Contractual upto

amount cash flows one year

June 30, 2024
Long term finances 742,576 817,125 232,131 294,176 290,818

Long term deposits

from dealers 13,230 13,230 = = 13,230
Short term finances 2,004,431 2,112,570 2,112,570 = =
Running finances 4,673,327 4,928,530 4,928,530 = =
Trade and other payables 3,310,249 3,310,249 3,310,249 - -
Unclaimed dividend 19,367 19,367 19,367 - -
Accrued mark-up 388,060 388,060 388,060 - -

11,151,180 11,589,131 10,990,907 294,176 304,048

June 30, 2023
Long term finances 1,025,122 1,156,014 327,569 286,058 542,387

Long term deposits

from dealers 11,630 11,630 - - 11,630
Short term finances 1,824,575 1,875,807 1,875,807 - -
Running finances 4,426,247 4,426,247 4,426,247 - -
Trade and other payables 3,660,086 3,660,086 3,660,086 - -
Unclaimed dividend 19,332 19,332 19,332 - -
Accrued mark-up 375,397 375,397 375,397 - -

11,342,389 11,524,513 10,684,438 286,058 554,017

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of
mark-up rates effective as at June 30, 2024.
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk represents the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk on import of raw materials, plant and machinery, stores
and spares and export of goods denominated in US Dollar and Euro. The Company's exposure to foreign
exchange risk at the reporting date is as follows:

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
Rupees  US Dollar Euro Rupees US Dollar Euro
---------- in'000 ---------- =======---in'000 ----------
Trade and other payables 1,292,909 4,604 31.20 1,999,819 6,933 30.00

The following significant exchange rates have been applied:
Reporting date rate

2024 2023

US Dollar to Rupee 278.80 287.10
Euro to Rupee 298.41 314.27

At June 30, 2024, if Rupee had strengthened / weakened by 10% against US Dollar and Euro with all other
variables held constant, profit before taxation for the year would have been higher / lower by the amount
shown below mainly as a result of foreign exchange gain / loss on translation of denominated financial
currency balances:

2024 2023

Effect on profit before taxation for the year. --- Rupees in '000 ---
US Dollar to Rupee 128,421 199,120
Euro to Rupee 870 862

129,291 199,982
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments will
fluctuate because of change in market interest rates.

Majority of the interest rate risk of the Company arises from short & long term borrowings from banks and
mark-up bearing deposits held with a bank. Borrowings at variable interest rates expose the Company to
cash flow interest rate risk and deposits with banks at fixed interest rates give rise to fair value interest rate
risk. At June 30, 2024, the interest rate profile of the Company's significant financial instruments is as
follows:

2024 2023

) . --- Rupees in '000 ---
Fixed rate instrument

Financial asset 9,793 8,639
Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities 6,996,955 6,663,420

At June 30, 2024, if the interest rate on the Company's borrowings had been higher / lower by 100 basis
point with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower / higher by
Rs 69.970 million (2023: Rs 66.634 million) mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense.

(iii) Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from foreign exchange risk or interest rate
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or factors effecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not
exposed to other price risk as it does not hold any price sensitive instruments.

46.2 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Underlying the definition of fair value is
the presumption that the Company is going concern and there is no intention or requirement to curtail
materially the scale of its operation or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The estimated fair value of all financial assets and liabilities is considered not significantly different from
book values as the items are either short - term in nature or periodically re-priced.

International Financial Reporting Standard 13, ‘Financial Instruments : Disclosure' requires the Company

to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
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- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities [Level 1].

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) [Level 2].

- Inputs for the asset or liahility that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) [Level 3].

Currently there are no financial assets or financial liabilities which are measured at their fair value in the

statement of financial position.

Financial instruments by category
Financial assets as per the statement of financial position

At amortised cost

Long term loans and advances
Long term deposits

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Deposits

Other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities as per the statement of financial position

At amortised cost

Long term financesx*

Long term deposits from dealers

Short term finances

Running finances under mark-up arrangements
Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Accrued mark-up

2024 2023

--- Rupees in '000 ---

4,793 4,987
19,435 19,468
3,693,470 2,941,341
24,989 24,948
11,819 20,646
64,551 52,848
224,435 139,675
4,043,492 3203913
588,272 829,171
13,230 11,630
2,004,431 1,824,675
4,673,327 4,426,247
3,177,193 3,567,324
19,367 19,332
388,060 375,397
10,863,880 11,053,676

* Includes the impact of government grant amounting to Rs. 154.244 million (2023: Rs. 195.951 million).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

47. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its business.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders and / or issue new shares.
There was no change to the Company's approach to capital management during the year and the
Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements except for the maintenance of debt to
equity ratio under the financing agreements.

48. ENTITY- WIDE INFORMATION
These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of single reportable segment.

48.1 Information about products and customers

The Company markets and sells tyre and tubes for automobiles and motorcycles. The principal classes of
customers of the Company's product are Original Equipment Manufacturers, Replacement Market,
Government Institutions and Exports. These principal classes of customers accounted for the following

percentages of sales:
2024 2023

% %

Original equipment manufacturers 36.34 38.43
Replacement market 57.14 52.95
Government institutions 5.35 7.39
Exports 1.17 1.23
100.00 100.00

48.2 Information about geographical areas
All non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2024 are located in Pakistan.
48.3 Information about major customers

Sales to two major original equipment manufacturer aggregating to Rs. 4,307.01 million (2023: one major
original equipment manufacturer aggregating to Rs. 1,579.512 million) account for 20.2% (2023: 10.52%)
of net sales.

49. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
The total and average number of employees during the year and as at June 30, 2024 and 2023 respectively
are as follows:

2024 2023

No of employees

Average number of employees during the year 1,096 1,088
Number of employees as at June 30 1,099 1,078
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50. GENERAL
50.1 Shahriah Screening Disclosure

Convent

-ional

Shariah
Compliant

Shariah
Compliant

Convent
-ional

Long term finances 423,319 319,197 612,524 412,598
Short term borrowings 335,627 1,668,804 225,000 1,599,575
Running finances under
mark-up arrangements 4,673,327 - 4244761 181,486
Accrued mark-up 294,084 93,976 276,720 98,677
Investment in an associated company - 33,772 - 24,902
Bank balances 206,641 6,587 128,999 9,328
Revenue - 20,538,570 15,018,659
Share of profit / (loss)
of an associated company - 1,047 - (1,016)
Share of other comprehensive income
of an associated company - 7,823 - -
Other income
a) Profit on bank deposits 1,865 - 1,249
b) Sale of scrap - 87,385 - 95,497
c¢) Gain on sale of operating fixed assets - 12,111 - 3,094
d) Exchange gain on actual currency 38,513 = - -
e) Others - 5,289 - 488
Mark-up on running finances
under mark-up arrangements 1,107,158 15,245 707,262 33,081
Mark-up on short term finances 70,454 391,736 163,737 277,460
Mark-up on long term finances 45,171 10,922 68,946 12,905
The Company have banking relation with the following shariah-compliant financial institutions:
a) Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited
b) Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited
c) Faysal Bank Limited
50.2 These financial statements were authorised for issue on September 04, 2024 by the Board of Directors of
the Company. The directors have the power to amend and reissue the financial statements.
50.3 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees, unless otherwise stated.
50.4 Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect more appropriate presentation

of events and transactions for the purpose of comparison in accordance with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan.

50.5 Subsequent to year ended June 30, 2024, the Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 4, 2024
has proposed a final cash dividend of Rs 1.87 per share amounting to Rs 228.015 million for approval of
the members at the annual general meeting. The effect of such dividend shall be accounted for in the
financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2025.

H s ¥ KL

Hussain Kuli Khan
Chief Executive

Naeem A. Sattar
Director

&=

Siraj A. Lawai
Chief Financial Officer
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INNOVATION

With over 60 years of expertise, GTR's innovation is
deeply rooted in our legacy. Harnessing advanced
International Technology and rigorous testing in Japan
& Europe, we continuously redefine tyre performance
and safety. Our commitment ensures every journey
Is empowered by superior grip, making each drive
not only safer but also an experience closer to
one's dreams.
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PATTERN OF
SHAREHOLDING

AS OF JUNE 30, 2024

of Shareholders Shareholdings' Slab Total Shares Held
73 1 to 100 22,850
1037 101 to 500 348,527
702 501 to 1000 608,330
1574 1007 to 5000 3,998,571
372 5001 to 10000 2,861,297
175 10001 to 15000 2,138,648
72 15001 to 20000 1,270,078
67 20001 to 25000 1,612,038
42 25001 to 30000 1,159,351
29 30001 to 35000 947,565
22 35001 to 40000 836,302
10 40001 to 45000 426,896
18 45001 to 50000 883,076
9 50001 to 55000 480,751
4 55001 to 60000 229972
6 60001 to 65000 370,543
4 65001 to 70000 273278
5 70001 to 75000 362,117
3 75001 to 80000 232,408
9 80001 to 85000 753,146
1 85001 to 90000 85,170
9 95001 to 100000 895,000
6 100001 to 105000 613,181
1 1050071 to 110000 110,000
1 110001 to 115000 115,000
1 115001 to 120000 120,000
2 120001 to 125000 245,800
2 1300071 to 135000 262,384
2 1350071 to 140000 275,068
2 145001 to 150000 298,000
1 160001 to 165000 162,000
2 170001 to 175000 342,843
1 185001 to 190000 186,252
1 195001 to 200000 199,056
3 205001 to 210000 621,698
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PATTERN OF
SHAREHOLDING

AS OF JUNE 30, 2024

of Shareholders Shareholdings’ Slab
1 215001 to
1 220001 to
2 240001 to
3 245001 to
1 295001 to
1 3000071 to
3 3050071 to
2 3300071 to
1 340001 to
1 345001 to
2 3950071 to
1 430001 to
1 450001 to
2 470001 to
1 485001 to
1 4900071 to
1 495001 to
2 625001 to
1 635001 to
1 700007 to
1 730001 to
1 740001 to
1 850001 to
1 880001 to
1 965001 to
1 1195001 to
1 1515001 to
1 1565001 to
1 1845001 to
1 4500001 to
1 5635001 to
1 29380001 to
1 36575001 to

4972

220000
225000
245000
250000
300000
305000
310000
335000
345000
350000
400000
435000
455000
475000
490000
495000
500000
630000
640000
705000
735000
745000
855000
885000
970000
1200000
1520000
1570000
1850000
4505000
5640000

29385000
36580000

<R

/rye

Total Shares Held

216,680
224,000
486,630
747,741
300,000
303477
924,000
668,520
344,000
350,000
798,000
435,000
455,000
945,688
486,625
490,452
500,000
1,257,356
636,000
702,373
731,300
742,356
854,408
884,500
966,859
1,200,000
1,615,720
1,669,644
1,850,000
4,501,464
5,638,618

29,380,308
36,579,835
121,933,350
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CATEGORIES OF
SHAREHOLERS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2024

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

Directors, Chief Executive Officer. and their spouse(s) and minor children

Ahmad Kuli Khan Khattak 4 2127847 1.75
Lt Gen (R) Ali Kuli Khan Khattak 1 486,525 0.40
lkram-ul-majeed Shegal 1 13 0.00
Muhammad Kuli Khan Khattak 1 10 0.00
Hussain Kuli Khan 1 204 0.00
Syed Ahmad Igbal Ashraf 1 10 0.00
Associated Companies, undertakings and

related parties 3 70,461,607 57.79
NIT & ICP 2 5,638,648 4.62
Banks Development Financial Institutions,

Non Banking Financial Financial Institutions. 6 2,716,824 2.23
Insurance Companies 3 450,500 0.37
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 3 944,532 0.77

General Public

a. Local 4,809 31,758,583 26.04

b. Foreign 70 1,938,659 1.59
Foreign Companies 4 20,481 0.02
Others 63 5,388,907 4.42
Totals 4,972 121,933,350 100.00
Shareholders holding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage
Bibojee Services (Pvt.) Limited 33,881,772 2779

Pakistan Kuwait Investment Co. (Pvt.) Ltd. 36,579,835 30.00
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I/We of (full address) being a member of
Ghandhara Tyre and Rubber Company Limited and holderof ____ ordinary shares as per Registered Folio No.
and/or CDC Participant I.D. No. and Sub Account No. hereby appoint

of (full address) or failing him of

(full address) as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 61st Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, October 28, 2024, at 11:00 am at ICAP Auditorium Hall,

Chartered Accountant Avenue, Clifton, Karachi and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed by me/usthis_____dayof 2024
Name of Shareholder ------==-=--------mm -

Witnesses:

NAME == === m = oo oo e Please affix
Revenue

N Stamp of

Signature of Member
(Signature should agree with the specimen signature
registered with the Company)
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AFFIX
POSTAGE

The Company Secretary

Ghandhara Tyre and Rubber Company Limited
H-23/2, Landhi Industrial Trading Estate
Landhi, Karachi.
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AFFIX
POSTAGE

The Company Secretary

Ghandhara Tyre and Rubber Company Limited
H-23/2, Landhi Industrial Trading Estate
Landhi, Karachi.
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GHANDHARA TYRE AND RUBBER COVMPANY LIMITED

HEAD OFFICE/FACTORY
H-23/2, Landhi Industrial Trading Estate, Landhi, Karachi, Pakistan. Phone: +92 21 3508 0172 (10 Lines),
UAN: +92 21111 487 487 Fax: +92 21 3508 0171, Email: headoffice@gentipak.com,
www.gtr.com.pk

@ criyre @ cTRyre @ GTRTyre
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